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Celebrating Life
Where there is celebration, there is food and where there is food, there is Keells. Our products
have always been an important factor wherever people gather, celebrate life and partake of delicious,
nutritious food. It brings people together, brings joy and as always, creates classic, memorable
flavours that leaves them wanting more. All because our philosophy relies on being simple, with an
equal dose of taste and goodness. We have been celebrating unforgettable moments for many years,
and will continue to do so, while being an integral part of all Sri Lankan lives.

Financial Highlights
			
2012
2011
Group					
Revenue		

Rs. 000

2,328,752

2,196,156

Change
%
6

Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT)		

Rs. 000

188,204

110,209

71

Profit before Tax (PBT)		

Rs. 000

180,644

95,552

89

Profit after Tax (PBT)		

Rs. 000

129,639

30,363

327

Shareholders Funds		

Rs. 000

452,427

322,963

40

Total Assets		

Rs. 000

818,812

778,460

5

Total Debt		

Rs. 000

86,820

198,355

(56)
327

Earnings per Share		

Rs.

15.25

3.57

Return on Capital Employed		

%

35.49

23.98

48

Return on Equity		

%

33.44

9.91

237

Market Price per Share as at 31st March		

Rs.

100.00

150.00

(33)

Market Capitalization		

Rs. 000

850,000

1,275,000

(33)

Price Earning Ratio		

No. of times

6.56

41.99

(84)

Quick Assets Ratio		

No. of times

0.99

0.72

38

Note: Figures in brackets indicate an unfavourable fluctuation.
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Introducing NEW !!!
Cheeesy Blast

KEELLS FUN LAB UNLOCKS THE POWER OF KIDS
Kids love fun and anything that let’s them express themselves creatively is awesome. It also
allows them to excel and develop faster than average. It has been shown that children who
learn through interaction and play always excel faster, than those who are taught by rote or
memorizing facts. It is through this that the Keells Fun Lab was born. By giving kids the ways
and the means to express themselves creatively, we allow kids to let out their inner Einstein.
The Keells Fun Lab is being launched to provide more children in Sri Lanka the opportunity to
come up with all the fun and interesting food and play combinations they can think of, a place
where they can do what they want and be what they want.
The Fun Lab is the place where we let kids play with food. They discover colours, textures
and tastes that they like and we put it all together in a product for them. From this, the kids
springboard to become explorers who discover a whole new taste experience which is based
exactly on what they want.
Two fun combinations were created out of the Keells Fun Lab. The Cheesy Blast Sausage, a
sausage that was named by a ten year old boy, is a wholesome chicken sausage, filled with a
generous dollop of creamy and nutritious cheese.

Power Snack
The Power Snack Sausage is a complete meal in a mouthful, with red rice, dhal,
carrots, spinach, chicken and spices.

Spicy Bites
Adding to an already increasing portfolio in the Sausage range is the new “Keells Spicy Bites”
sausages. This one of a kind sausage combines the spice of Chillie with a juicy sausage.
Keells Spicy Bites which contains real pieces of Chillie has been specially designed to add
some extra spice to your parties, outings or family dinners.
The origin of Spicy Bites is steeped in Sri Lankan roots, as we are proud of our ability to
handle the most spiciest of dishes. Keells Spicy Bites caters to this need and is designed to
satisfy all those who crave that extra spice in their lives.
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Chairman’s Review
“The current year results are the best ever achieved by
your Company”

I am pleased to present the Annual Report and audited Financial Statements of the Group for the financial year 2011/12.

Our Brands
During the year, based on a consumer study and inputs from both internal and external resources, a brand architecture was formulated
to position our brands to cover the entire market from the premium range to the mass catering channel. The brand propositions
would give the consumer a greater choice, and products for different consumption occasions. Accordingly the ‘Keells’ brand and the
‘Krest’ brand and the ‘Elephant House’ processed meat brand manufactured and marketed by your Company under franchise, have
changed their packaging to align itself with the brand proposition.
Our R&D and product innovation teams were able to introduce several new products in to the market “Cheesy Blast”, “Power Snack”
and “Spicy Bite”. The Power Snack is a unique sausage product of chicken meat combined with vegetables and rice. I am pleased
to report that all our new products have been well accepted by our consumers.
The Kids fun lab concept which we introduced in January this year, was a first in this industry where we engaged children in
workshops with experts in art, music and cookery.
Your Company still remains the only manufacturer and marketer of a range of products under SLS certification in the country. We
continue to receive high ratings in our consumer research for food hygiene and quality.

Our Indian Operation
As mentioned in my report last year the Company has now established a master distributor for our products in India. We are hopeful
that this model will gain momentum and give the Company sufficient returns in the coming years.

Financial Results
Turnover grew by 8% from Rs. 2,163 million to Rs. 2,329 million through a volume increase of 4% and selected price
increases in some of the SKUs. Your Company recorded a profit before tax of Rs. 180 million. Improvements in efficiency,
prudent cost management and the Nation Building Tax reduction granted in the previous year’s budget helped us to achieve
this improved profitability during the year. After providing for tax of Rs. 51 million the Company posted a profit after tax of
Rs. 129 million as compared to a Loss after Tax of Rs. 55 million in the previous year. It needs to be noted that the current year results
are the best ever achieved by your Company.
At a consolidated level, the profit after tax was at Rs. 129.6 million against a profit of Rs. 30.4 million last year.

Challenges Faced
The erratic supply of chicken meat particularly during the second quarter of the year under review had an impact on our cost base as
we were compelled to import chicken at a higher cost which was not passed on to the consumer. In addition to working with many of
the established chicken farms, we have also inducted new players in to the supply chain with the goal of increasing the local chicken
production to meet our raw material requirements.
An aspect previously highlighted in this report and discussed at many for a remains unaddressed, where unbranded sausages are
sold in loose form in the general trade compromising the quality and hygiene standards. The authorities should take serious concern
of this development and enforce proper hygiene standards to protect the consumer.

4
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Our factory at Ja-ela which has been in operation for over 25 years has reached its peak capacity despite several augmentations over
the last few years. Your Board is mindful of the need to invest in another facility to enhance our current capacity and several options
are presently under consideration.

Stakeholder Relations
We continued to strengthen the relationship with the Spice Growers Association and sourced a majority of our local spice requirement
from them. This initiative as well as the relationships we have with local meat producers has helped to create sustainable income for
local entrepreneurs and the farmer community.
New markets in the North and East have been accessed by developing the retailer cold chain facilities and educating consumers on
our product range.

Looking ahead
With changing life styles in terms of the meal preparation time being reduced at homes, the convenience foods industry has excellent
potential. The increase in the number of outdoor events and growth in tourism will continue to fuel growth in this industry.
Our R&D and product development is receiving high priority to offer nutrition while mitigating the rising cost of raw materials and
energy.

Acknowledgements
I would like to express my appreciation of the support extended to me by my colleagues on the Board. I congratulate the team at
Keells Food Products PLC for maintaining our leadership position.
I would also like to acknowledge all our stakeholders for continuing to have confidence in us and look forward to your continued
support in the year ahead.

Susantha Ratnayake
Chairman
25 May 2012
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Our Products

Keells is presently Sri Lanka’s market leader in the processed meat industry.
Keells started its operations in the year 1983, and takes pride in being solely
responsible in developing the Sri Lankan Processed Meats industry to its
current heights.
Keells has kept abreast of the industry through strategic investments in state of the art food processing technology, quality
control systems and an aggressive Company wide R&D orientation. Keells is the only processed meat manufacturing
Company to be awarded SLS for its quality of product and process. This is yet another testament to our commitment to
being the leader in the market.
Keells world class Sausages, Meat Balls, Hams, Bacons, Cold meats and Raw meats combine gourmet taste, nutrition and
offer superior quality. The range offers convenience to meet today’s demanding lifestyles of consumers all over the world.
We serve certain markets in India, United Arab Emirates & Maldives and are currently in the process of strengthening our
presence in these regional markets.

Krest is our crumbed and battered range. At present the brand has also moved
into the territories of French Fries & Raw Chicken. Our state of the art food processing technology and quality control systems ensure that all our products are
of high quality and superior taste.
The Krest crumbed range is fully Halaal certified and consists of products ranging from Drumsticks, Fish Fingers, Kievs,
Nuggets and Rolls. The recently introduced French Fries variant “Krinkle Cut” adds to the present range of quality cut
French Fries in order to provide our consumers with variety. These products are directly imported from the Netherlands and
are of the highest international standards. As of late Krest has also moved into producing quality chicken with three ranges
to choose from and is in the process of expansion.

Management Discussion & Analysis
Satisfactory Performance
In terms of profitability the Company posted its best ever results on the back of a volume growth of 4% coupled with cost and
operational efficiencies enabling the Company to increase its gross margins.
The retail channel contributed 35% to our overall volumes and grew by 7% whilst the catering channel contributed 30% and grew by
5%. The rise in inbound tourists and the increase in out of home consumption have impacted our sales favourably.
Consumption of processed meats still remains comparatively low in Sri Lanka when compared to the fresh meats category, there is
scope for growth.
Keells Food Products PLC (KFP) sustained its market leadership position in the processed foods category through a range of
marketing strategies aimed at strengthening its market share, whilst connecting more closely with the consumer. The Company has
been driving innovation and high brand recall in an effort to enhance the consumption of our products. Based on a combination of
consumer feedback and R&D efforts, we are constantly formulating new products that fulfil the expectations of our consumers.
Our Brands
Based on research and consumer feedback the Company engaged a restructure of its brand and products portfolio through a new
brand architecture which has now begun to roll out. This means the Elephant House meats which are currently manufactured and
marketed under franchise, the Keells sausages, meatballs and slices and the Krest chinese rolls and crumbed formed meats will be
positioned targeting the different consumption occasions for the identified target groups.
The change in packaging and product enhancement are part of this strategy.
The fully compliant Halal brand, Krest witnessed a steady growth in volumes during the period under review. The Krest range includes
chinese rolls, nuggets, fish fingers, kievs. Krest french fries, which is primarily marketed to the catering industry.
Quality Standards and SLS Standards
At present Keells is the only brand with a Sri Lanka Standards (SLS) certification. Through training and regular audits we ensure our
standards in quality are maintained and continuous improvements done to achieve higher levels.
Strengthening Partnerships
We continue to expand our distribution and extend our availability in retail Outlets Island wide. At the end of the period reviewed, our
retail reach was extended to 16,000.
New distributors were appointed to expand our network in the North and East.
Brand Building Efforts
The Keells brand of processed meats has been built over the last 30 years has held its position with a clear differentiation for
quality and taste. With the addition of the 3 products during the year, we offer the consumer a greater choice for their consumption
occasions.
The media campaigns were supported by cookery demonstrations and tasting sessions held during special promotions at super
markets, food exhibitions and activations such as Keells Foods Fun Lab activation, roti rasa karaththaya, meat balls gamin gamata.
They have a special focus on consumer education and awareness. Similar promotions were carried out in the North and East on our
products and cooking options.
As a market leader in its category, we strengthened our position during the year among the young consumers with the new products
and activities for consumer engagement.
Threats to Processed Meats Industry
The threat posed by the increased presence of unbranded sausages sold in loose form to consumers, both in retail and wholesale
markets, is on the rise and poses a danger of eroding the reputation and goodwill of the industry.
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Supply Chain Management
Most of the raw materials in our processed meats are sourced locally, but few are imported. The rise in import duties brought into
play at the end of the financial year under consideration will affect our cost structure in the future, thereby exerting pressure on our
profit margins.
Our approach to sustainability encompasses all our stakeholders and we are committed to delivering maximum benefits to society.
Our backward integration efforts remain strong and in fact we have in place a solid framework of local sourcing suppliers for meats,
vegetables and spices required in our manufacturing process. The Company has identified micro and small scale farmers working
individually or in collective organizations who fulfil our requirements for fresh produce and local spices.
The Company not only offers them a ready market, but it extends technical advice and transfer of know how, updates on fertilizer and
feed, and adherence to stringent quality standards and so on, so that they can derive a higher yield. We are proud to be engaged in
the development of the rural economy.
India Operations and Exports
The Company’s exports to India were hampered during the year due to restrictions brought in force by Indian authorities in issuing
import permits thereby impacting a steady supply of our products to our master distributor. The sharp depreciation of the Indian
Rupee too has had an impact on the cost structure of the distributor. Despite these constraints our export volumes to India grew by
16% whilst there was a satisfactory increase in our exports to the Maldives.
IFRS Convergence
The Company’s efforts towards the IFRS convergence stemmed from the commitment by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka (ICASL) to converge with IFRS by January 2012. ICASL has published the Sri Lanka version of the IFRSs and IASs
(International Accounting Standards) as SLFRSs and LKASs and these have been gazetted as at 30 December 2011 and are effective
from 1 January 2012.
Convergence approach
The Company followed the convergence approach adopted by the John Keells Group which was as follows;
•
•
•
•
•
•

Creation of IFRS awareness across the group;
Development of Technical competence across the group;
Established expert support on convergence through an external organisation;
Created shareholder awareness through prior year annual report of financials;
Established time lines for timely implementation; and
Aligning of systems and processes to facilitate convergence.

In this light, the JKH Group embarked on a special project as early as in the fourth quarter of 2009. JKH Group auditors played a
key role in creating the initial awareness amongst the key finance personnel across the JKH Group. In addition to this key financial
personnel and senior managers of JKH group companies were briefed by organised IFRS awareness sessions.
On skills development, senior and second level finance staff attended technical training sessions conducted by the ICASL and some
staff, the IFRS diploma conducted by the ACCA.
The JKH group created an ‘IFRS project team’ with representation from each sector headed by the Group Financial Controller of
JKH. JKH Group also created a ‘Center of Excellence’ with a team of young finance staff for a sustainable adoption of the new
standards.
Convergence Project
The Company and the Subsidiary sought assistance of the Ernst & Young ‘Advisory and consultancy unit’ engaged by JKH Group for
support and advice on IFRS convergence.
The Group carried out a detailed gap analysis (under Ernst & Young’s guidance) which included a gap analysis of IFRS against the
existing SLAS and actual policies and practice at the Company and the Subsidiary. During this study proposed corrective actions,
amended processes and disclosure requirements were identified.

11
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Management Discussion & Analysis Contd.
Regular project status updates were shared at the monthly JKH Groups’ Financial Controllers meetings and issues were presented,
debated and solutions derived.
Subsequent to the detailed gap analysis, a series of presentations were made to Group Executive committee (GEC) of JKH highlighting
specific impact and solutions, impact and the way forward and changes to be expected.
Similar presentations were done to the Audit Committee as well.
System readiness
As part of facilitating SLFRS/LKAS implementation, a technical upgrade was done to the JKH Group ERP system (SAP) during the
year. The JKH Group carried out a functional upgrade during April 2012 in line with global best practices to facilitate parallel ledger
accounting for all group companies. This enables the group companies to identify and differentiate IFRS related transactions at any
given time when compared with current SLAS reporting. This will also enable off-shore companies to maintain two ledgers to facilitate
country specific GAAP and IFRS which would be in line with SLFRS/LKAS.
Looking Ahead
The Company is evaluating several options to expand capacity to meet its future demand forecast.
The Company has played a pioneering role in the processed meats industry and will continue to do so by investing further in
increasing capacity and capability to introduce new products in line with our value proposition of offering convenient foods with
nutrition and taste.
Meanwhile, we will bring in modern ingredients offering greater benefits to consumers. Our focus in the coming months will be on
enhancing brand presence in the North and East. A multi pronged approach to tackling new markets is being drawn up for a wider
impact.
We expect the 2012/13 financial year to bring with a host of challenges, mainly with greater pressures on our profit margins, due
to escalation of costs in raw materials and utilities. Increasing the costs of KFP products will become a pressing need in such an
environment, although we plan to limit the price increases to the minimum by leveraging on planned production efficiencies to
mitigate the impact on the consumer.
Management Committee
R. F. N. Jayasooriya
K. A. V. Fernando
T. G. T. P. K. Gamage
J. O. Gregory
T. Hathurusinghe
D. C. A. Kalubowila
J. D. Kanagaraj
S. J. Ihalagedara
A. A. N. Lalantha
A. C. Morris
M. C. R. Perera
R. M. A. L. B. Rathnayake
C. N. Soza
P. B. T. Weerasekera
D. R. Abeysundera
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Chief Executive Officer
Assistant Manager - Production - Keells
Manager - National Sales
Manager- Purchasing
Manager - Factory
Manager -Livestock Purchasing
Manager - Finance
Assistant Vice President - Marketing
Manager - Research and Development
Senior Accountant
Manager -Credit
Manager - Quality Assurance
Assistant Manager -Production - Krest
Manager - Logistics
Manager - Engineering
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Financial Review

Business Performance- Income Statement

Revenue
The Revenue at Company level Increased by 8% to Rs. 2,328 million (Rs. 2,163 million in 2010/11) as a result of increase in volume
whilst selective price increases too contributed to the increase in revenue. Although the processed meat range and crumb range grew
in volume there was a decline in the trading and canned range volumes during the year under review.
Cost of Sales
Despite price fluctuations and shortages throughout the year of key raw materials, chicken and pork the Company was able to
manage its raw material costs within the target levels as various sourcing initiatives paid off in holding the cost of production at
manageable levels during the year.
Factory wages and related costs increased by 10% whilst energy costs increased by only 6% despite the rate increase affected in
the last quarter of the year and increase in production volumes. Cold storage costs were reduced by Rs. 3 million compared to the
previous year.
Gross Profit
Gross profit of the Company was Rs. 562 million representing a 10% increase against Rs. 512 million recorded in the previous year.
The Company was able to maintain the gross profit margin of the Company at 24% due to changes in the sales mix and selective
price increases.
Other Operating Income
Other operating income at Company level reduced to Rs. 10.8 million from the previous year of Rs. 22.4 million which included
Rs. 15.4 million of bad debt recovery from the Subsidiary Company of John Keells Foods India Private Ltd.
Operating income at a consolidated level increased by Rs. 4.6 million.
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Selling and Distribution expenses include the cost incurred in distribution of products, advertising and promotional expenses as well
as all other sales related expense.
Distribution cost at the Company increased to Rs. 248 million from Rs. 238 million in the previous year largely due to the strengthening of the
sales and marketing team whilst maintaining advertising and promotional costs at the same level as in the previous year. Primary distribution
costs were maintained at the same level as in the previous year despite increase in sales volumes and an increase in diesel costs.
Administration Expenses
Administration cost increased by 8% to Rs. 94 million from Rs. 87 million in the previous year. The Company was successful in
keeping the administrative staff cost and all the other administrative cost at a minimum and below the inflationary impact.
At the Group level administration expenses reduced to Rs. 96 million against Rs. 105 million in the previous financial year due to
operations in India being discontinued.
Finance Cost
During the year under review, interest rates inclined towards the latter part of the year. The Company attracted favourable interest
rates from the financial institutions, at low premiums to SLIBOR, leveraging on the Company’s improved financial strength.
The Company finance cost decreased by 48% to Rs. 7.6 million from the Rs. 14.7 million in the previous year as a result of decrease
in the level of borrowings over the previous year.
Interest cover at Company level it was 25 times (7.52 times in 2010/11).
Profit from Operating Activities
The Company posted a strong performance which resulted in earnings from operating activities before interest and tax (EBIT) of
Rs. 188 million compared to an EBIT of Rs. 146 million in the previous year excluding the charge for impairment of foreign
investment.
At a consolidated level EBIT increased by 71% to record Rs. 188 million compared to an EBIT of Rs.110 million in the previous
year.
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Management Discussion & Analysis Contd.

Taxation
The tax charge for the year at the Company was Rs. 51 million (2010/11 Rs. 65.2 million). The reduction of add back of advertising
expenses for tax purposes from 50% to 25% of the expense incurred, removal of disallowance of 2/3 of the cost of Nation Building Tax
and reduction in corporate income tax rate from 35% to 28% enabled the Company to reduce the taxation liability despite increase in
profitability.

Financial Position- Balance Sheet

Shareholders’ Funds
Shareholders’ funds increased to Rs. 449 million from Rs. 320 million in the previous year representing an increase of 40%. This
substantial increase was on account of the profitability achieved during the year and retained earnings increasing by Rs. 129.3 million.
Shareholders’ fund at Group level was at Rs. 453 million and Rs. 323 million in the previous year.
Asset Base
The asset base at the company increased to Rs. 813 million from the previous year of Rs. 773 million which represents a 5% increase
over last year. The Company disposed and retired fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 27 million while acquiring assets worth
of Rs.28 million during the financial year.
The Group’s total assets base as at 31st March 2012 was Rs. 819 million as against Rs. 778 million in 2010/11.
Cash Flow and Liquidity
The Company’s key sources of finance for the year under review were cash generated from operations and short term borrowings.
The Company ensured the adequacy of liquidity to service debt and meet future requirements of working capital and capital
expenditure.
The Company operates its own treasury function assisted by the Treasury division of John Keells Holdings PLC based on the policies
and plans approved by the Board. Our Treasury manages a variety of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and liquidity. Further details of the management of these risks are given on page 38. The role of the Treasury is to
ensure that appropriate financing is available for all value-creating investments. Additionally, the treasury delivers financial services to
allow the Company to manage their financial transactions and exposures in an efficient, timely and low-cost manner.
Cash flow from operating activities at Company level amounted to Rs. 199 million (Rs. 168 million in 2010/11). Cash generated from
operations inclusive of working capital changes was Rs. 238 million in comparison to Rs. 5 million in the previous year. Increase in
operating profit, reduction in inventory, increase in trade and other payables at the Company resulted in this increase.
The increase in cash flows during the year enabled the Company to retire short term borrowings of Rs. 82 million thus reducing the
overall borrowings. Accordingly, the Gearing Ratio at the Company Level declined to 20% as against 62% in 2010/11.
Shareholder Value
The Company’s strategic priorities are primarily focused on delivering shareholder value through the achievement of sustainable,
capital efficient and long term profitability growth.
The Basic Earnings per Share (EPS) for the Group was Rs. 15.25 (EPS for 2010/11 was Rs. 3.57).
The Group net assets per share at book value stood at Rs. 53.23 (Rs. 38 for 2010/11) whilst at Company level it stood at Rs. 52.88
(Rs. 37.66 for 2010/11).
The Company’s share price was Rs.150 at the beginning of the financial year and saw a decrease to Rs.100 as at 31st March 2012
moving within a range of Rs. 72 to Rs. 172 during the year. The market capitalization of the Company was Rs. 850 million (Rs. 1,275
million in 2010/11) as at the end of the financial year.
Return on Equity (ROE) for the Group increased to 33% (10 % - 2010/11) and for the Company to 34% (negative 15.79% - 2010/11)
whilst Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) at Group level also increased to 35% against the 24% in the last year.
A first and final dividend of Rs. 2 per share (2010/11 - Nil) amounting to a total payout of Rs. 17 million was approved for payment
by Directors.
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Directors Profile
Susantha Ratnayake
Non Independant Non Executive, Chairman
Mr. Ratnayake was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st April 1993.
Susantha Ratnayake was appointed as the Chairman and CEO of John Keells Holdings PLC in January 2006 and has served on the
JKH Board since 1992/93. He is also the Chairman of many of the listed and un-listed Companies within the Group. He is a council
member of the Employers’ Federation of Ceylon, serves on various clusters of the National Council of Economic Development
(NCED) and is the Chairman of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce. He has over 34 years of management experience, all of which is
within the John Keells Group.

Ajit Gunewardene
Non Independant Non Executive, Director
Mr.Gunewardene was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st October 2002.
Ajit Gunewardene is the Deputy Chairman of John Keells Holdings PLC and has been a member of their Board for over 19 years.
He is a Director of many Companies in the John Keells Group and is the Chairman of Union Assurance PLC. He is a member of the
board of SLINTEC, a Company established for the development of nanotechnology in Sri Lanka under the auspices of the Ministry of
Science and Technology. He has also served as the Chairman of the Colombo Stock Exchange. Ajit has a degree in Economics and
brings over 30 years of management experience.

Ronnie Peiris
Non Independent Non Executive, Director
Mr.Peiris was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st June 2003.
Appointed to the John Keells Holdings PLC Board during 2002/03, Ronnie Peiris has overall responsibility for the Group’s Finance and
Accounting including Taxation, the Information Technology function and Group Initiatives. He was previously the Managing Director
of Anglo American Corporation (Central Africa) Limited in Zambia. Ronnie has over 40 years of finance and general management
experience in Sri Lanka and abroad. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and the Society of Certified Management Accountants, Sri Lanka and holds an MBA from the
University of Cape Town, South Africa. He is a member of the committee of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, Chairman of its
Taxation Sub Committee and also serves on its Economic, Fiscal and Policy Planning Sub Committee. He is a Director of several
Companies in the John Keells Group, is Chairman of Nations Trust Bank PLC and is currently the President of the Sri Lanka Institute
of Directors.

Jitendra Gunaratne
Non Independent Non Executive, Director
Mr. Gunartne was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st July 2004.
Jitendra Gunaratne is responsible for the Consumer Foods sector. Prior to his appointment as President, he overlooked the Plantations
and Retail sectors. His 31 years of management experience in the Group also covers Leisure and Property. Jitendra holds a diploma
in marketing. He is the President of the Beverage Association of Sri Lanka and also serves as a member of the advisory committee
on consumer affairs of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce.

Harsha Amarasekera
Independant Non Executive, Director
Mr. Amarasekera was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st July 2005 and is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.
He is an Attorney-at-Law by profession and has a wide practice in the Original Courts as well as in the Appellate Courts. He
has specialized in Commercial Law, Business Law, Securities Law, Banking Law and Intellectual Property Law. He serves as an
Independent Director in several listed Companies in the Colombo Stock Exchange including CIC Holdings PLC Amaya Leisure PLC &
Vallibel Power Erathna PLC. He is also a Director of CIC Agri Business Private Limited, Vallibel One Limited and Expo Lanka Holdings
Ltd.
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Directors Profile Contd.
Eardley Perera
Independant Non Executive, Director
Mr. Perera was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st October 2005 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors.
He is currently the Non Executive Chairman of M&E (Private) Limited and serves on the Boards of other Public and Private Companies.
He also serves as a Member on the Board of Study, Postgraduate Institute of Management (PIM), University of Sri Jayewardenepura.
He is a Chartered Marketer and senior member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK with many years of experience in general
management and marketing in trade and industry. His focus has been on strategic marketing and business strategy, in which areas
he is also actively engaged in consultancy assignments.

Ranil Pieris
Independant Non Executive, Director
Mr.Pieris was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st July 2005 and is a member of the Audit Committee of
the Board of Directors.
He previously was Director and Chief Operating Officer at Richard Pieris and Company PLC, at the time he was on the Board of 13
Subsidiary Companies of RPC and was Chairman of some of these. He conceptualized and spearheaded the Arpico Super Centres
and introduced the hyper market concept to the local market. For a period he was CEO at EDNA. More recently he was CEO/
Managing Director of GTECH Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, a fully owned Subsidiary of GTECH Corporation (USA).
Today he is involved with developing a project in Real Estate. In addition he is on the Board of Rajawella Holdings, Arel Holdings and
a Trustee of the Lionel Wendt. Mr Pieris holds a Bachelors degree from Florida International University in the USA.

Preethi Jayawardena
Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Jayawardena was appointed to the Board of Keells Food Products PLC from 10th May 2007 and is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.
He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and Certified Professional Managers. Managing Director/CEO of
Chemanex PLC, Non-Executive Chairman of The Finance Company PLC, Non-Executive Director of CIC Holdings PLC, Commercial
Bank PLC, Ram Rating (Lanka) Limited, and a number of other unlisted Companies in the CIC Group. Served at Zambia Consolidated
Copper Mines Limited for 13 years and held several senior positions including Head of Treasury. Also is a member of the Monetary
Policy Consultative Committee of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and Chairman of the Ceylon National Chamber of Industries.
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Sustainability Report
We have been in the forefront of the business of pre-cooked meats and processed meats for decades and over this time, nurtured
stakeholder relationships as an investment for the future. As a pioneer in the industry, the effort and investment made was not only
pragmatic but one that today has reaped a return far in excess of the forecast.
While our shareholders have been the bedrock upon which our business remains solidly constructed, our consumers ignite and
drive our innovative powers to create products that are ahead of their time, demanding only the best quality in our products; this
innovative spirit is honed in our team, who possess an indomitable spirit and passion to achieve results beyond expectation, a
feature further fueled by our valued business partners, who build for us a solid foundation of healthy Sri Lankan produce steeped
in quality in order to give us the edge in manufacturing the best quality product in the market. Into this we add our focus on astute
waste management practices, pragmatic occupational health and safety initiatives and a conscious effort to reduce our energy
consumption. Our stakeholders thus have jointly cemented a business that remains true to the values of a totally Sri Lankan entity
but with vision that creates an innovative product portfolio that encompasses best practices and international standards to give the
consumer a truly global product.
We have an unique and pioneering brand that has the added positive dynamic of strong management resolve, creating the apt
environment to take the business forward. We have mooted a business that is ‘by the people, for the people’ infusing innovation,
creativity, dynamism and continuous improvement into our very own canvas of success to bring about a constantly evolving product
portfolio that remains incomparable within the industry today. Our passion and focus in remaining true to our ideals has resulted in
creating sustained brand equity through a holistic value chain, innovation and emphasis on quality that culminates in the products
we take to the consumer. The consequences to this have been that we have been responsive to our stakeholder needs, in addition to
being proactive with all our stakeholders and ensuring that the end results of our responses remains sustainable.
The added stimulus we gain in ensuring that we remain steeped in the tenets of responsible corporate stewardship is in the fact
that we are a part of the John Keells Group which is under the aegis of John Keells Holdings PLC. The group-wide commitment to
sustainability is a holistic one, with focused projects and initiatives that have a strong flavour of sustainability, rather than philanthropy.
The ethos therefore permeates group companies, instilling in each, a sense of responsibility towards each group of stakeholder to
ensure their sustainability. This also quantifies the positive impact we have in our relationship with them.
We strongly subscribe to the philosophy of building relationships on long term platforms where trust, honesty, accountability and
sincerity of action form the foundation to strengthening these multi-faceted relationships. Governance, ethics, values and principles
remain fundamental to the overall picture of sustainability.

Responsible Sourcing
Ours is an interesting and unique value chain, one that is unusual in that a majority of our raw material is sourced from micro and
small entrepreneurs. To most large manufacturing businesses, local sourcing can be time consuming and fraught with challenges. To
us, it’s a win-win relationship.
Our valued business partners are those who have vision to better themselves although the avenues for such betterment were limited.
We began using the existing network of collective associations and entities to gain access to these farmers and growers, believing
strongly that being a Sri Lankan Company, we are tasked with a large responsibility of impacting tangibly our presence in this
country.
The network of farmers thus has now grown considerably and our sourcing avenues have become expansive, with chicken, pork,
vegetables and spices all sourced locally from agricultural areas around the country. With Matale and Dambulla being added to our
network through the sustainable integrated farmer community for vegetables and all our spices requirements and the farmers from
seven districts and twenty villages in the Ratthota area all employed directly under the Kandy Vanilla Growers Association supplying
us with our requirements of onions and sweet potatoes, we are now self sustaining in the raw material cog of our value chain.
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Sustainability Report Contd.
Sustainable Sourcing Projects of Keells Food Products PLC 2011/12
Product

Location

Primary Suppliers/ Project
Partners

No. of
farmer
families

Total Annual Supply
(Kg)

Total Payment
(Rs.)

Pork

Kaluaggala, Diulapitiya
Bujjampola, Giriulla,
Weliweriya, Katana,
Kosgama, Pamunugama
Dambulla, Kandy

Kaypro Farms
Maxies Livestock
SN Brothers Farm
Pussalla Farm
Dilini Farms
CIC Farms
Sanjeewa Farms
St Anthonys Farm
D S D Perera
W G Fernando

25

732,418

218,876,171

Chicken

Wennappuwa, Hanwella,
Kosgama
Meethirigala, Kosgama,
Hanwella, Meethirigala

Maxies & Company
Pussalla Farms
New Anthony's Farm
Nelna Farms

2200

1,228,008

312,603,783

Spices

Meegammana West,
Wattegama, Kandy

Kandy Vanilla Growers
Association

2500

35,282

30,088,122

Vegetables

Meegammana West,
Wattegama, Kandy

Kandy Vanilla Growers
Association

2500

165,819

11,220,923

However, it must be remembered, that we produce a product that speaks of high quality, best practices and standards, that form our
consumer imperatives. This then must cascade to the raw material sources as well. Keeping this in focus, we have over the years
begun imparting technical knowhow and agricultural best practices to these farmers, which has seen a tangible improvement in the
raw material we gain and has enabled these farmers to gain better prices for their produce.
Farm management, breeding, feeding, animal health and quality control have all been infused into the everyday work activity of the
farmer which permeates to stability in supply, volume and prices, while enhancing knowledge levels among them. Our drive for quality
and the influence it has on our valued business partners is evidenced with the Kandy Vanilla Growers Association obtaining GMP
Certification from the Sri Lanka Standards Institute for its processing facility and grinding mill at Ratthota.
The sustainable income that ensues to the farmer due to the ready market for their produce enables a definite improvement in their
lifestyles and aspirations, while for us, this stakeholder intervention forms a steady and sustainable value chain to manufacture quality
products to suit the consumer’s discerning palate, which all collectively reflect very positively on our bottom line.

Responsible Manufacturing
Present day consumers are discerning and are most demanding in their expectations. We realise this and welcome it because
it is these traits that constantly drive us to create better products and improve on what we offer our consumer. The continued
communication we engage in with our consumers help us determine the evolving trends and therefore, lead us to manufacture goods
according to those aspirations. We also know that the consumer demands quality, convenience and value for money, all fundamental
tenets in our brand promise. The responsibility this places on our shoulders to ensure that A to Z of our manufacturing process
conforms not only to the legal and regulatory requirements of a manufacturing facility, but also that we give our consumers the high
quality economical product expected from us.
We work in a milieu of ‘beyond compliance’, where the stringent international standards of ISO certifications for hygiene and safety
and the Sri Lankan SLS standard are steeped into our everyday operations. Our unshakeable focus on maintaining standards has
seen us continually strive towards imbuing the culture of beyond compliance, introducing quality driven initiatives that have seen us
being certified in all facets of our business, from sourcing, to product innovation, manufacturing, marketing and consumer care. We
remain the only meat processing company in Sri Lanka to obtain SLS certification and have also obtained ISO 9001 and ISO 22000
for Food Safety Standards.
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We are very conscious of the responsibility we have in ensuring that our products not only conform to the highest quality standards
but are manufactured in an environment that is safe, clean and hygienic with immense focus on managing environmental standards
as well. The constant monitoring helmed by a dedicated team especially in Occupational Health and Safety ensures that our products
conform to very high hygiene standards, an unequivocal assurance we give our consumer.
Specialist skill is infused in our very modern laboratory, equipped with some of the world’s best technology related to our industry
and a team that remains very focused on exceeding quality standards. The systems and processes that we have introduced over
the years creates an enabling environment for the quality controllers to function in, complimenting their knowledge and skill, which is
eventually seen in the products that we manufacture.
Responsible manufacturing encompasses the complete cycle of manufacture and the final step of getting our products to the
consumer. Storage, transport and distribution of our product too therefore come into this chain of events. We are cognizant of the
challenges that ensue due to logistical constraints vis a vis transport and storage especially of pre-cooked and processed meat
products, and have therefore, implemented a system that brings in distributors and retailers who buy into our vision of responsible
product delivery.
The distribution network and the retail network are handpicked by the Company, to ensure total conformance to the standards
we expect of them. Distribution vehicles and storage rooms equipped with the apt equipment and retailers whose storage and
selling points are aligned to the health and safety controls we have within the Company are compulsory and are worked on with no
compromise. Continuous monitoring, spot checks and knowledge enhancement initiatives regarding quality controls, health and
safety are imbued to all our external partners, to ensure that the end product given to the consumer carries our most important brand
pillar of quality.

Responsible Product Innovation
We have created and continue to develop an innovative product portfolio that surpasses the competition within the local market. We
also remain cognizant of consumer trends and expectations given the continuous two way communication channels we maintain
with our consumers both at point of sale and point of consumption. These have helped us charter our innovation map, where product
development gains a more focused angle and we are therefore able to apply R&D more productively into exceeding consumer
expectations.
The R&D process in our company is a highly driven one, manned by a team who is skilled and specialised amply exampled in the
development of the Keells Spicy Bites and Cheesy Blast introduced to the market.
With extended working hours and modern lifestyles demanding convenience foods and the need for healthy foods the Keells power
snack was introduced which creating a meal in itself which gives good quality protein specially for growing children.

Responsible Marketing
Our marketing is conducted in an ethical, just and transparent manner, where truth remains paramount. Our communication campaigns
are conceptualised to educate the consumer, while promoting our products, which we assure them is of high quality and value for
money. Our brand promises and deliverables are aligned to the fundamental premise of commitment to our lofty principles of ethical
marketing, where consumers are very much aware of every facet of the product they eventually consume.
We are transparent in our communication and are committed to accountability in every facet of our business. We adhere very strictly
to the laws and regulations that govern FMCG and food products in Sri Lanka and given that we do have an expanding export
portfolio, remain cognizant to the regulatory requirements prevalent in those countries as well.

Youth Empowerment
With our corporate stewardship platform encompassing initiatives that create avenues of sustainable development for our stakeholders,
education for enhanced livelihoods remains a primary initiative in our social responsibility calendar. As we have collated an extensive
network of farmers and given them a strong market base and sustainable income, while imparting a knowledge base to better their
ultimate product, we have also focused on enhancing knowledge among our youth, empowering them to gain better avenues of
employment and career advancement.
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Sustainability Report Contd.
Our continuous programme of developing selected undergraduates interested in the food and beverage industry saw a total of 22
undergraduates undergoing training in a gamut of related subjects this year. The students hail from impoverished backgrounds and
are studying for degrees in Agriculture, Food Sciences, Microbiology, Human Resources and Marketing Management at universities
located across the country. The comprehensive programmes conducted by our in-house specialists encompass quality, product
development, livestock handling, human resources and marketing and is a significant value addition to their curriculum.

Responsible Environmental Management
Manufacturing is an energy intensive process which can not only be expensive but also utilise natural resources indiscriminately,
reflecting eventually on a Company’s bottom line and stakeholders as well. Astute environmental management is a responsibility that
cannot be taken lightly and to us, it is a priority on our corporate agenda.
Energy efficiency and management is an imperative that has been in our focus for a number of years. While we source a significant
amount of energy from the country’s main grid, we have instituted a number of initiatives within the Company to reduce energy
consumption. Being a food manufacturing Company, we also utilise a considerable amount of water, which is sourced from tube and
surface wells located within our facility, all treated to ensure compliance with health and safety standards.
Our solid waste disposal system conforms to the standards required from a fully fledged food manufacturing facility. The incinerator
currently in use has a capacity of disposing 6,000 kgs of solid waste with complete safety mechanisms in place. Waste water is
treated through a biological waste water treatment plant prior to release into the public drainage system, having ensured that the
released water is contaminant and toxic proof, readied completely for human habitat.
Having obtained Central Environmental Authority certification to eliminate or limit sound pollution emanating from our factors, we
also continually monitor emission levels and disposal processes, conforming stringently to the regulatory requirements dictated by
the Central Environmental Authority.

Responsibly empowering our people
The success we have seen in the last year proves that it is our people who are the backbone to our success. The positive focus they
espouse, the dynamism, motivation and entrepreneurial spirit is undoubtedly what lies as the firm foundation to taking our company
forward. Being a people centric organisation, the quality of people is paramount and we in turn, are absolutely committed to ensuring
that our people remain aligned to our vision, goals and objectives, while not compromising quality in any way, so that their own
individual career goals are met.
Promoting a knowledge driven culture that revolves on team spirit and innovativeness, we are constantly creating milieus to stimulate
them in order to optimise on their capabilities and competencies, steeped in an equitable work/life balance that will help them attain
new heights, hone their knowledge and skills continuously and develop professionalism.

Open Dialogue
An imperative to continuous improvement, sharing opinions, ideas, problem solving and mentoring remain integral to the culture of
open dialogue we espouse. Weekly team briefings, monthly meetings and open door policies are inherent in our working culture,
where an interactive atmosphere discussing goals, Company objectives and priorities form the roots for growing our platform of
consumer excellence. Employee feedback and suggestions are a key component to our inner workings, helping strengthen team
spirit and encourage consistent focus on business goals, while we encourage our team to be proactive in their contribution to the
company.

Equal Opportunity Employer
We are ingrained into the precepts of the ILO standards and other global best practices pertaining to equality in employment and
conform to the very high standards and mechanisms practiced by our Parent Company John Keells Holdings. Believing firmly in this
premise of being an equal opportunity employer, we are keen on presenting sustainable employment to all levels of abilities, working
on true meritocracy.
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Training & Development
Ours is an industry that is constantly evolving, where customer preferences transform quickly and we must be ready to take on the
challenge of anticipating those preferences. Our knowledge culture revolves on the axis of intense training and development, with
innovation forming the truss upon which we stay ahead of competition. The Performance Management System is a comprehensive
tool that enables us to identify training needs, bridge the gaps and create a team that is knowledge and skill equipped to conquer
rising consumer expectations.

Analysis on Company
Executives’ Years of Service

Analysis on Company Executives’
Years of Service

2012

2011

10 years & above

26

22

05 to 10 years

25

24

Below 5 years

19

21

10 years & above

67

5 to 10 years

TOTAL

70

27%
37%

Below 5 years

36%

Employee Distribution of the
Company

2012

2011

Senior Management

21

16

Middle Management

49

51

Sales Reps

61

54

Clerical & Supervisor

28

27

Factory Workers

267

270

Casual Workers

27

22

453

440

TOTAL
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Employee Distribution
of the Company
6%
13%

Senior Management
Middle Management
Sales Reps

11%

Clerical & Supervisor
Factory Workers

5%

Casual Workers
6%

59%

Enterprise Governance
Keells Food Products PLC and its Subsidiary John Keells Foods India Private Limited referred to as the “Group” and through its holding
Company John Keells Holdings PLC (JKH) has a Enterprise Governance philosophy founded on a culture of performance within a
framework of conformance and compliance to succeed in today’s competitive business environs in a manner that is sustainable and
equitable to all our stakeholders.
This philosophy has been institutionalised at all levels in the Group through a strong set of corporate values and a written code of
conduct that all employees, senior management and the Board of Directors are required to follow in the performance of their official
duties and in other situations that could affect the Group’s image.
The Directors and employees at all levels are expected to display ethical and transparent behaviour through their communication
and role modeling. All the Group’s recognition schemes insist, as a minimum, that all employees have lived the JKH values and the
behaviour of the senior management of the group, is monitored through an annual 360 degree feedback programme.
The Group is committed to the highest standards of business integrity, ethical values and professionalism in all its activities towards
rewarding all its stakeholders with greater creation of value, year-on-year. Our governance framework which has been communicated
to all levels of management and staff in individual businesses and functional units is based on the following:










The Board is responsible to the shareholders to fulfill its stewardship obligations, in the best interest of the Company and its
stakeholders.
Maximising shareholder wealth-creation on a sustainable basis while safeguarding the rights of multiple stakeholders.
The methods we employ to achieve our goals are as important to us as the goals themselves.
No one person has unfettered powers of decision making.
Building and improving stakeholder relationships is an integral aspect of the Board effectiveness and a responsible approach to
business.
Opting, when practical, for early adoption of best practice governance regulations and accounting standards.
Our resolve to maintain strong governance practices which present strong commercial advantages especially through a lowering
of our cost of capital as a result of the strengthened stakeholder confidence, particularly the confidence of our investors, both
institutional and individual.
The making of business decisions, and resource allocations, in an efficient and timely manner, within a framework that ensures
transparent and ethical dealings which are compliant with the laws of the country and the standards of governance our
stakeholders expect of us.

Enterprise Governance Framework
The Enterprise Governance Framework of the Group entails 3 key components as summarised below. The Enterprise Governance
discussion within this report will essentially be structured and followed in the sequence outlined below, highlighting the different
elements that combine to ensure a robust and sound governance framework.
1.
2.
3.

Internal Governance Structure
Assurance
Regulatory Framework

Internal Governance Structure and Assurance
These are the components that are embedded within the Group, and as a result, have an impact on the execution of all governance
related initiatives, systems and processes.

Regulatory Framework
From an external perspective, adherence to laws and best practices plays a vital role in directing the Group towards conformance
to established governance related laws, regulations and best practices. The Group’s governance philosophy is practiced in full
compliance with the following Acts, rules and regulations;




Companies Act of 2007 - Mandatory compliance
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) - Mandatory compliance
(Including subsequent revisions up to 1 April 2012)
The Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance as published by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants, Sri Lanka – Voluntary compliance

Where necessary and applicable, any deviations as allowed by the relevant rules and regulations have been explained.
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Internal Governance Structure
The Internal Governance Structure encompasses; Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Senior Management Committees,
complemented by internal governance systems and procedures - which act as the enablers of the business plan. These mechanisms,
within the internal governance structure, ensure implementation and execution towards upholding the Group’s Enterprise Governance
framework.
The components of the internal governance structure are designed in such a way that the executive authority is well devolved and
delegated through a committee structure ensuring that the CEO and functional managers are accountable for the Group and the
business units/sub-functions respectively. Clear definitions of authority limits, responsibilities and accountabilities are set and agreed
upon in advance to achieve greater operating efficiency, expediency, healthy debate and freedom of decision making.

Chairman and the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors, along with the Chairman, is the apex body responsible and accountable for the stewardship function. The
Directors are collectively responsible for upholding and ensuring the highest standards of Enterprise Governance and inculcating
ethics and integrity.
Please refer the Directors Profile on page 15 for details on expertise, experience and qualifications of the Board of Directors.

Board Responsibilities and Decision Rights
The powers specifically vested in the Board include;








Providing direction and guidance to the Group in the formulation of its strategies, with emphasis on the medium and long term,
in the pursuance of its operational and financial goals.
Reviewing and approving annual budgets and strategic plans.
Reviewing HR processes with emphasis on top management succession planning.
Monitoring systems of governance and compliance.
Overseeing systems of internal control and risk management.
Determining any changes to the discretions/authorities delegated from the Board to the executive levels.
Reviewing and approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure.

Board Composition and Directors’ Independence
As at 31st March 2012, the Board consisted of eight (8) Directors, of which four (4) are Non-Executive, Independent Directors. As at
the last Annual General Meeting held on the 30th June 2011, the Board consisted of the same number of Directors.
The Board members have a wide range of expertise as well as significant experience in corporate, marketing, legal and financial
activities enabling them to discharge their governance duties in an effective manner.
Name of Director

Executive /
Independent /
Involvement/
Non Executive Non Independent Interest in
Shareholding

Involvement/ Continuously Involvement/
Interest in
served for 9
Interest in Supply
Management years
Contracts

Mr. S. C. Ratnayake Chairman

Non Executive Non Independent

Yes

No

Yes

-

Mr. A. D. Gunewardene Non Executive Non Independent

No

No

Yes

-

Mr. J. R. F. Peiris

Non Executive Non Independent

No

No

No

-

Mr. J. R. Gunaratne

Non Executive Non Independent

No

No

No

-

Mr. S. H. Amarasekara Non Executive Independent

No

No

No

No

Mr. R. Pieris

Non Executive Independent

No

No

No

No

Mr. A. D. E. I. Perera

Non Executive Independent

No

No

No

No

Mr M. P. Jayawardena

Non Executive Independent

No

No

No

No
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Non-Executive/Independent Directors and the Board Balance
Collectively, the Non-Executive Directors bring a wealth of value adding knowledge, ranging from domestic and international
experience to specialised functional know-how, thus ensuring adequate Board diversity in accordance with principles of Enterprise
Governance.
The Company is conscious of the need to maintain an appropriate mix of skills and experience in the Board and to refresh progressively
its composition over time, in line with needs. Independence of the Directors has been determined in accordance with the criteria of
the CSE Listing Rules (revised in April 2011), and the Board confirms that its present composition of Non-Executive Independent
Directors is in line with the requirements of the CSE Listing Rules. The four Independent Non-Executive Directors have submitted
signed confirmations of their independence.
All Non-Executive Directors (NED) are encouraged to propose discussion items for the board meetings.

Conflicts of interest and independence
Each Director has a continuing responsibility to determine whether he or she has a potential or actual conflict of interest arising from
external associations, interests in material matters and personal relationships which may influence his judgment. Such potential
conflicts are reviewed by the Board from time to time.
Details of companies in which Board members hold Board or Board committee membership are available with the Company for
inspection by shareholders on request. In order to avoid potential conflicts or biasness, Directors adhere to best practices as
illustrated below.
Prior to Appointment

Once Appointed

During Board Meetings

Nominees are requested
to make known their
various interests that could
potentially conflict with the
interests of the Company.

Directors obtain Board clearance prior to: Directors who have an interest in a matter under
discussion:
 Accepting a new position.
 Engaging in any transaction that could
 Excuse themselves from deliberations on the
create a potential conflict of interest.
subject matter.
 Abstain from voting on the subject matter
All NEDs notify the Chairman of
(abstentions, where applicable, from decisions,
any changes to their current board
are duly minuted).
representations or interests.

Board Tenure, Retirement and Re-election


The Directors are appointed and recommended for re-election until their prescribed Company retirement age.



At each Annual General Meeting one third of the Directors, retire by rotation on the basis prescribed in the Articles of Association
of the Company and are eligible for re-election. The Directors who retire are those who have been longest in office since their
appointment / re-appointment. In addition, any new Director who was appointed to the Board during the year is required to stand
for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting.



The re-election of Directors ensures that shareholders have an opportunity to reassess the composition of the Board. The names
of the Directors submitted for re-election are provided to the shareholders in advance to enable them to make an informed
decision on their election.

•

The names of the retiring Directors eligible for re-election this year are mentioned in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

Role of the Chairman of the Board
The Chairman is a Non Executive Non Independent Director. The Chairman conducts Board Meetings ensuring effective participation
of all Directors. The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to the Board and ensuring that proper order and effective
discharge of Board functions are carried out at all times by the Board Members. The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) are separate with a clear distinction of responsibilities between them. The executive responsibility for the functioning of the
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Company’s business including implementation of strategies approved by the Board and developing and recommending to the Board
the business plans and budgets that support the Company’s strategy has been entrusted to the CEO.

Access to Management Information
To ensure robust deliberation and optimum decision making, the Directors have access to;








Information as is necessary to carry out their duties and responsibilities effectively and efficiently.
Information updates from management on topical matters, new regulations and best practices as relevant to the Group’s
business.
External and internal auditors.
Experts and other external professional services.
The services of the company secretaries whose appointment and/or removal is the responsibility of the Board.
Periodic performance report.
Senior management under a structured arrangement.

Financial Expertise
The Board consists of two senior qualified Accountants with significant experience in the corporate sector. Both of them possess
necessary knowledge and expertise to offer the Board of Directors guidance on matters of finance. One of them serves as the Finance
Director of the Parent Company, whilst the other as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Board Meetings and Attendance
The Board of the Company meets once every quarter, in the least. Any absences are excused in advance and duly minuted. The
absent members are immediately briefed on the discussions and actions taken during the meeting.
The attendance of the directors at the Board Meeting held for the period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2012 is as follows:
Date
Directors
Mr. S C Ratnayke
Mr. A D Gunewardene
Mr. J R F Peiris
Mr. J R Gunaratne
Mr. R Pieris
Mr. S H Amarasekera
Mr. A D E I Perera
Mr. P S Jayawardena

26th April 2011

29th July 2011

4th November
2011

24th January 2012






















-

-

-













-

Board Directors Delegation of Authority
The Board has delegated some of its functions to Board committees while retaining final decision rights pertaining to matters under
the purview of these committees.
The Board has, subject to pre-defined limits, delegated its executive authority to the CEO who exercises this authority through the
Management Committee (MC), which he heads and to which he provides leadership and direction.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises solely of Non-Executive, Independent Directors and conforms to the requirements of the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. It is governed by a Charter, which inter alia, covers the reviewing of policies and procedures
of internal control, business risk management, compliance with laws and Company policies and independent audit function.
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The Committee is also responsible for the consideration and recommendation of the appointment of External Auditors, the maintenance
of a professional relationship with them, reviewing the accounting principles, policies and practices adopted in the preparation of
public financial information and examining all documents representing the final Financial Statements.
A quarterly self certification program that requires the CEO, CFO and the Head of Finance to confirm compliance, on a quarterly
basis, with statutory requirements and key control procedures and to identify any deviations from the set requirements. In addition
the CEO and the Operational Heads of the different divisions are also required to confirm operational compliance with statutory and
other regulations and key control procedures, coupled with the identification of any deviations from the expected norms. These
have significantly aided the Committee in its efforts in ensuring correct Financial Reporting and effective Internal Control and Risk
Management.
The Audit Committee had 6 meetings during the year and attendance of the Audit Committee members are indicated in the Audit
Committee Report on page 35.
The CEO, CFO, Head of Finance and other operational heads are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee. The detailed Audit
committee report including areas reviewed during the financial year 2011/12 is given on page 35 of the Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee and Policy
The Remuneration Committee of the Parent Company John Keells Holdings PLC functions as the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and conforms to the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee of the Parent Company consists of following four Non Executive Independent Directors:
Mr. Franklyn Amerasinghe - Chairman
Mrs. S. Tiruchelvam
Dr. I. Coomaraswamy
Mr. A. R. Gunesekara
The Remuneration Policy of the Group is formulated to attract and retain high caliber executives and motivate them to develop and
implement the business strategy in order to optimize long term Shareholder value creation.
The key principles underlying the Remuneration Policy of the Group are as follows:








All executive roles across the JKH Group have been banded by an independent third party on the basis of the relative worth of
jobs.
Compensation be set at levels that are competitive to enable the recruitment and the retention of high caliber executives in
the identified job classes/bands - as guided by the best comparator set of companies (from Sri Lanka and the region, where
relevant)
Compensation, comprising of fixed (base) payments, short term incentives and long term incentives be tied to performance, both
individual and organisational.
Performance be measured annually on well-defined objectives and matrices at each level - individual, business and group,
thereby aligning shareholder interests through well established performance management system.
The more senior the level of management, the higher the proportion of the incentive component, thereby lower the proportion of
the fixed (base) component of total compensation.
As the seniority, and therefore the decision influencing capability of the position on organisational results, increases, the
individual performance to hold lesser weightage than the organisational performance when determining total compensation and
incentives.

Directors’ Responsibilities
The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in relation to Financial Reporting is given in the Financial Reports section of the Annual
Report. The Directors’ interests in contracts of the Company are addressed in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.
The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee have taken all reasonable steps in ensuring the accuracy and
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timeliness of published information and in presenting an honest and balanced assessment of results in the quarterly and annual
Financial Statements.
As discussed in the shareholder relations section of this note, all price sensitive information has been made known to the Colombo
Stock Exchange, shareholders and the press in a timely manner and in keeping with the regulations.

Going Concern
The Board of Directors upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee is satisfied that the Company and the Subsidiary have
sufficient resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. In the unlikely event that the net assets of the Company fall
below a half of shareholders’ funds, shareholders would be notified and an extraordinary resolution passed on the proposed way
forward.
The going concern principle has been adopted in preparing the Financial Statements. All statutory and material declarations are
highlighted in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors in the Annual Report. Financial Statements are prepared in accordance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS), including all the new standards introduced during the subject year, and International
Accounting Standards (IAS), as applicable.
Information in the Financial Statements of the Annual Report are supplemented by a detailed ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’
which explains to shareholders the strategic, operational, investment and risk related aspects of the Company that have translated
into the reported financial performance and are likely to influence future results.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
In the previous financial year, the Group reported that, as per the given requirements by the ICASL, IFRS is to be implemented by
the start of the 2012/2013 financial year and that Group is in line to meet this requirement. The Group reported the formation of a
Committee by the JKH Group in the financial year 2010/11 comprising of financial personnel from within the JKH Group to study and
assess the impacts on the implementation of IFRS as per the guidelines set by the ICASL.
The Committee gathered information from finance and operational teams across the JKH Group on the impact of IFRS and several
iterative discussions were held between internal and external parties, including technical experts, and involved the study of regional
benchmarks to evaluate and quantify such impacts. The study also entailed reviewing all agreements and contracts within the
respective businesses to identify contractual obligations and financial impacts of such agreements in the quantification process.
The Board and the Audit Committee were continuously updated on the progress of the findings and a detailed policy manual has
been drafted to ensure full compliance and consistency in the application of IFRS guidelines. This process has culminated with the
financial ERP system being upgraded to ensure compliance with the new provisions.

Employee participation in Enterprise Governance
The Group believes that shareholders’ long term interests are well served by involving employees actively within the Enterprise
Governance framework, where the employees are empowered to positively contribute towards executing and preserving the principles
of Enterprise Governance.
Having considered its employees as its greatest asset, the Group embraces employees at various levels to its internal governance
structure and in recognition of the same, policies, processes and systems are in place to ensure effective recruitment, development
and retention as the Group is committed to hiring, developing and promoting individuals who possess the required competencies.
Moreover the Group provides a safe, secure and conducive environment for its employees, allows freedom of association and
collective bargaining, prohibits child labour, forced or compulsory labour and any discrimination based on gender, race or religion,
and promotes workplaces which are free from physical, verbal or sexual harassment, all of which compliment effective Enterprise
Governance.
Accordingly, the Group’s approach to employee participation in Enterprise Governance is based on 3 constituents as illustrated

27

| Keells Food Products PLC (PQ3) Annual Report 2011/2012

Enterprise Governance Contd.
below:
Employee Participation in Enterprise Governance
Employee Involvement &
Empowerment

Employee
Communication

Pay for Performance

Employee Involvement and Empowerment


Top management and other senior staff are mandated to involve, as appropriate, all levels of staff in formulating goals, strategies
and plans.



Decision rights are defined for each level in order to instill a sense of ownership, reduce bureaucracy and speed-up the decision
making process.



Bottom-up approach is taken in the preparation of annual and five year plans and the Group also ensures employee involvement
and empowerment in the process.



Employee relations are designed to enable, and facilitate, high accessibility by all employees to every level of management.

Employee Communication
The Group is continuously working towards introducing innovative and effective ways of employee communication and employee
awareness. The importance of communication - top-down, bottom-up, and lateral in gaining employee commitment to organisational
goals has been conveyed extensively and intensively through various communiques issued by the Chairman and the management.
Whilst employees have many opportunities to interact with senior management, the Group also has created formal channels for such
communication through feedback as described below:


360 degree Evaluation
Opinion is obtained in the form of 360 degree evaluation for employees at Managers level and above.



Skip Level Meetings
Feedback on the Company and its management is obtained from different perspectives by holding regular skip level meetings at
assistant manager and above levels.



Online Forum
Used as a means of knowledge sharing and gathering new suggestions for new business opportunities and improvements.



Direct email address to the Chairman of JKH
Enables employees to bring to his notice any transgression of the Group values when other established avenues have not yet
yielded results.



Exit Interviews
Practice exit interview for all employees at executive level and above where all such reports are forwarded to the President for
their comments.



Corporate Communications
The primary goal of corporate communications is to enhance and safeguard the “Kelles and Krest” corporate brand.
Accordingly, it engages in activities to build the brand amongst both current and prospective employees in addition to creating
awareness amongst the general public at large.

Pay for performance
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In the Group the employees are rewarded with a customised ‘pay for performance’ scheme that is determined as follows:
Manager & above - performance is measured annually on well-defined individual and organisational objectives and metrics which
reflect, and are positively correlated to, the Company’s objectives, thereby aligning employee management and stakeholder
interests.
Assistant Manager & Executive level – measured by individual performance ratings only, given that it is difficult for these individuals
to directly influence the bottom line of their respective business units.
The performance measurement system introduced in 2006/07 by JKH Group is the key enabler for the effective implementation of
the pay for performance system and any shortcomings identified in the systems are being continuously addressed and rectified year
on year.

Performance Management
‘Pay for Performance’
Greater prominence is given to the incentive
component of the total target compensation of the
management.

Satisfaction
‘Great Place to Work’
Continuously focuses on creating a sound work
environment covering all aspects of employee
satisfaction.

COMPENSATION POLICY
Compensation comprises of fixed (base) payments, short term incentives and
long term incentives.
l Higher the seniority within the Group, higher the incentive component.
l Greater the decision influencing capability of a role, higher the weight given
on organizational performance as opposed to the individual performance.
l Long term incentives in the form of Employee Share Options (ESOP).
l

Internal Equity
Remuneration policy is built upon the premise to
ensure an equal pay for equal roles.
Manager and above level roles are banded using
the Mercer Methodology for job evaluation on the
basis of the relative worth of jobs.

External Equity
Fixed compensation is set at competitive levels
using the median, 65th percentile and 75th
percentile of the best comparator set of companies
(from Sri Lanka and the region, where relevant) as
a guide.
Regular surveys done to ensure that employees
are not under / over compensated

Stakeholder Management
The Board views effective stakeholder management as a vital aspect in safeguarding the Group’s Enterprise governance
philosophy.

Employee Relations
The HR units are designed in a manner that enables high accessibility by any employee to every level of management. Constant
dialogue and facilitation are also maintained, relating to work-related issues as well as matters pertaining to general interest that could
affect employees and their families. Therefore, the Group follows open-door policies for its employees and key stakeholders and this
is promoted at all levels of the Group.
The Group also has skip level meetings where an employee can discuss matters of concern with superiors who are at a level higher
than their own immediate supervisor in an open but confidential environment.
A detailed discussion on employee relations is discussed under Employee participation in Enterprise Governance.

Shareholder Relations
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Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Shareholders have the opportunity at the AGM, to put forward questions to the Board and to the Chairman and the chairmen of the
various committees to have better familiarity with the Group’s business and operational workings. The contents of this Annual Report
will enable existing and prospective stakeholders to make better informed decisions in their dealings with the Company.
In general, all steps are taken to facilitate the exercise of shareholder rights at AGMs, including the receipt of notice of the AGM and
related documents within the specified period, voting for the election of new Directors, new long term incentive schemes or any other
issue of materiality that requires a shareholder resolution.
Dialogue with Shareholders
The Company, through its Investor Relations division of JKH Group maintains an active dialogue with shareholders, potential investors,
investment banks, stock brokers and other interested parties. Any concerns raised by a shareholder are addressed promptly at the
department level and are forwarded, when necessary, to the Chairman for consideration and advice.
Other Stakeholders
The Group recognises that it exists not only to maximise long term shareholder value but also to look after the rights and appropriate
claims of many non-shareholder groups such as employees, consumers, clients, suppliers, lenders, environmentalists, host
communities and governments.

Assurance
The ‘Assurance’ element is the supervisory module of the Group Enterprise Governance Framework, where the use of a range
of assurance mechanisms such as monitoring, benchmarking and effectiveness tests are carried out and corrective actions are
proposed and implemented.

Whistleblower Policy
The employees can report to the Chairman through a communication link named ‘Chairman Direct’, concerns about unethical behavior
and any violation of Group values. Employees reporting such incidents are guaranteed complete confidentiality and such complaints
are investigated and addressed via a select committee under the direction of the Chairman.

Ombudsperson
The Ombudsperson entertains complaints from an individual employee or a group of employees of alleged violations of the published
Code of Conduct if the complainant feels that the alleged violation has not been addressed satisfactorily using the available/existing
procedures and processes.
The findings and the recommendations of the Ombudsperson arising subsequent to an independent inquiry is confidentially
communicated to the Chairman upon which the duty of the Ombudsperson ceases.
The Chairman will place before the Board;
i.
ii.
iii.

the decision and the recommendations
action taken based on the recommendations
where the Chairman disagrees with any or all of the findings and or the recommendations thereon, the areas of disagreement and
the reasons therefore.

In situation (iii), the Board is required to consider the areas of disagreement and decide on the way forward. The Chairman is expected
to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the complainant is not victimised for having invoked this process.

Monitoring of Financial Data
Actual financials are compared against the original plan on a monthly basis and material variances are identified and explanations are
discussed at the GMC whilst a mid year reforecast is done where necessary.
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The CEO Functional Managers are able to view either online or by circulation, the information relevant to their areas of responsibility.
The Chairman and Executive Directors are able to view key financial information for all Group companies on a real time basis via the
Group ERP system.

Internal Control
The Board has taken necessary steps to ensure the integrity of the Group’s accounting and Financial Reporting systems and Internal
Control systems remain effective via the review and monitoring of such systems on a periodic basis. A brief description of some of
the key systems is listed below:

Internal Compliance
A quarterly self-certification programme requires the CFO and the Head of Finance to confirm compliance with financial standards
and regulations. The Heads of business units are required to confirm operational compliance with statutory and other regulations and
key control procedures, and also identify any significant deviations from the expected norms.

Internal Auditors
The role of the internal auditor has been transformed into a value adding function instead of merely a ‘policing’ function, where audit
findings form an integral input in modifying and improving our internal processes.
The risk review programme covering the internal audit of the Company is outsourced to Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers (Private)
Limited, a firm of Chartered Accountants and the reports arising out of such audits are, in the first instance, considered and discussed
at the business / functional unit levels and after review by the CEO of the Company is forwarded to the Audit Committee on a regular
basis. Further, the Audit Committees also assess the effectiveness of the risk review process and systems of internal control on a
regular basis. Follow-ups on internal audits are done on a structured basis.

Risk Management
The Group has adopted a Group-wide Risk Management programme with focus on wider sustainability development, to identify,
evaluate and manage significant Group risks and to stress-test various risk scenarios. The programme ensures that a multitude
of risks, arising as a result of the Group’s operations, are effectively managed in creating and preserving shareholder and other
stakeholder wealth. The detailed Risk Management report of the Annual Report describes the process of risk management as
adopted by the Group and the identified key risks to the achievement of the Group’s strategic business objectives.

Code of Conduct
The written Code of Conduct, to which all the employees including the Board of Directors are bound by, engraves the desired behaviors
of staff at executive and above level, particularly the senior management. This is being constantly and rigorously monitored.

Code of Conduct
 Allegiance to the Company and the Group
 Compliance with rules and regulations applying in the territories that the Group operates in
 Conduct of business in an ethical manner at all times and in keeping with acceptable business practices
 Exercise of professionalism and integrity in all business and ‘public’ personal transactions

Group Values
The objectives of the Code of Conduct are being further preserved by a strong set of corporate values which were re-launched during
the financial year 2011/12 by the John Keells Group which are applicable to both the Company and the Subsidiary as well. The Group
values are well institutionalised at all levels within the Group and linked to the reward and recognition schemes.
The JKH Group decided to re-look at the values and evaluate the suitability of the same for the existing organisational and environmental
context. Resultantly, JKH Group wide surveys were carried out and the responses were vigilantly distilled to arrive at the re-launched
set of values.
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The Chairman of the Board affirms that there have not been any material violations of any of the provisions of the Code of Conduct.
In the instances where violations did take place, or were alleged to have taken place, they were investigated and handled through
the Company’s well established procedures which, among others, include direct and confidential access to an independent, external
Ombudsperson.

External Audit
Ernst & Young are the External Auditors of the Company and Luthra and Luthra Chartered Accountants are the External Auditors of
the Subsidiary. Ernst & Young also audit the consolidated Financial Statements.
In addition to the normal audit services, Ernst & Young also provided certain non-audit services to the Company. However, the
auditor would not engage in any services which are in the restricted category as defined by the CSE for External Auditors. All such
services have been provided with the full knowledge of the respective Audit Committees and are assessed to ensure that there is
no compromise of External Auditor independence. The External Auditors also provide a certificate of independence on an annual
basis.
The audit and non-audit fees paid by the Company and Group to its auditors are separately classified in the Notes to the Financial
Statements of the Annual Report.

Enterprise Governance Regulatory Framework
Compliance with Legal Requirements
The Board through the JKH Group Legal division, and its other operating structures, strives to ensure that the Company and its
Subsidiary comply with the laws and regulations of the country of registration.
The Board of Directors has also taken all reasonable steps in ensuring that all Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the requirements of the Colombo Stock Exchange and other applicable authorities.
The Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, as set by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, are those, which govern the
preparation of the Financial Statements. The International Accounting Standard is used in the rare instance where a Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard does not exist. The Board is aware of the growing importance of the disclosure of critical Accounting Policies as
a part of good governance and are of the opinion that there are no instances where the use of such concepts would have a material
impact on the Company’s and the Group’s financial performance.
This Report has been prepared as per the rules and regulations stipulated by the Corporate Governance Listing Rules published by
the Colombo Stock Exchange and also by the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.
The Group has also given due consideration and adhered to the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance Reporting guidelines
jointly set out by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities & Exchange Commission in preparation of this
Enterprise Governance Report, and where necessary deviations have been explained as provided within the rules and regulations.

Future Outlook
The Group is committed to conducting its affairs, under a stakeholder model, with integrity, efficiency and fairness.
We believe that Enterprise Governance in the future will reflect an increasing emphasis on customer satisfaction, both external and
internal customers, as a way of measuring the adaptability of the organisation over time. Additionally we also believe that there will
emerge a new type of corporate information and control architecture in the form of more specialised Board Groups and Advisory
Stakeholder Councils comprising employees, lead customers, suppliers and others. Our growing emphasis on “sustainability” is the
first step in this journey.
Our key areas of focus will be;
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Creating operating structures which are agile and flexible in aligning to the constantly changing needs of the dynamic environment
that we operate in.
Maintaining appropriate internal controls and a robust framework of risk management and mitigation.
Reviewing, regularly, the internal processes and benchmarking them against international best practices.
Entrenching stakeholder relationships through more transparent information flows and proactive dialogue.
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Levels of Compliance with the Colombo Stock Exchange’s new Listing Rules - Section 7.10, Rules on Corporate
Governance
Rule No.

Subject

Applicable requirement

Compliance Applicable Section in
Status
the Annual Report

7.10.1(a)

Non Executive Directors

Two or at least one third of the total number
of Directors should be Non-Executive
Directors.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.2(a)

Independent Directors

Two or one third of Non-Executive Directors,
whichever is higher, should be independent.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.2(b)

Independent Directors

Each Non-Executive Director should submit
a declaration of independence / nonindependence in the prescribed format.

Compliant

Available with
Secretaries for Review

7.10.3(a)

Disclosure relating to
Directors

The Board shall annually make a
determination as to the independence or
otherwise of the Non-Executive Directors and
names of Independent Directors should be
disclosed in the Annual Report.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.3(b)

Disclosure relating to
Directors

The basis for the Board to determine a
Director is Independent, if criteria specified
for Independence is not met.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.3(c)

Disclosure relating to
Directors

A brief resume of each Director should be
included in the Annual Report and should
include the Directors areas expertise.

Compliant

Board of Directors
profile section in the
Annual Report

7.10.3(d)

Disclosure relating to
Directors

Forthwith provide a brief resume of new
Directors appointed to the Board with details
specified in 7.10.3(a), (b) and (c) to the
Exchange.

Compliant

No new Director was
appointed during the
year.

7.10.4
(a-h)

Determination of
Independence

Requirements for meeting criteria

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.5

Remuneration Committee A listed Company shall have a Remuneration
Committee.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.5(a)

Composition of
Shall comprise of Non – Executive Directors a Compliant
Remuneration Committee majority of whom will be Independent.

Enterprise Governance

7.10.5.(b)

Functions of
The Remuneration Committee shall
Remuneration Committee recommend the remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Directors.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance

7.10.5.(c)

Disclosure in the
Annual Report relating
to Remuneration
Committee

The Annual Report should set out,
a. Names of Directors comprising the
Remuneration Committee
b. Statement of Remuneration Policy
c. Aggregated remuneration paid to Executive
and Non - Executive Directors

Compliant

Enterprise Governance
and the Annual Report
of the Board of Directors
and Note 23 of the
Financial Statements

Audit Committee

The Company shall have an Audit Committee. Compliant

7.10.6
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Compliant
Compliant

Enterprise Governance
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Rule No.

Subject

Applicable requirement

Compliance Applicable Section in
Status
the Annual Report

7.10.6(a)

Composition of Audit
Committee

Shall comprise of Non – Executive Directors a Compliant
majority of whom will be Independent.
Compliant
A Non - Executive Director shall be
appointed as the Chairman of the Committee.

7.10.6(b)

7.10.6(c)

34

Audit Committee
Functions

Disclosure in Annual
Report relating to Audit
Committee

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer should attend Audit Committee
Meetings.

Compliant

The Chairman of the Audit Committee or
one member should be a member of a
professional accounting body.

Compliant

Enterprise Governance
and the Annual report of
the Board of Directors

Functions shall include;
a. Overseeing of the preparation, presentation
and adequacy of disclosures in the
Financial Statements in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
b. Overseeing of the compliance with
Financial Reporting requirements,
information requirements of the Companies
Act and other relevant Financial Reporting
related regulations and requirements.
c. Overseeing the processes to ensure that
the internal controls and risk management
are adequate to meet the requirements of
the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards.
d. Assessment of the independence and
performance of the external auditors.
e. Make recommendations to the Board
pertaining to appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors, and
approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors.

Compliant

a. Names of Directors comprising the Audit
Committee.
b. The Audit Committee shall make a
determination of the independence of the
Auditors and disclose the basis for such
determination.
c. The Annual Report shall contain a Report
of the Audit Committee setting out of the
manner of compliance with their functions.

Compliant.
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Compliant

Compliant

Enterprise Governance
and the Audit
Committee
Report

Compliant
Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Enterprise Governance
and the Annual report of
the Board of Directors

Audit Committee Report
The powers and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are governed by the Audit Committee Charter which is approved and adopted
by the Board. The terms of reference comply with the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE).
The Committee is tasked with assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility to the shareholders, potential shareholders,
the investment community and other stakeholders in relation to the integrity of the Financial Statements of the Group and that it is
in accordance with the Companies Act and other legislative reporting requirements and that adequate disclosures are made in the
Financial Statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
The Audit Committee ensures that the internal controls and the risk management process are adequate to meet the requirements of
the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards and that the Group is in compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical requirements.
The Committee evaluates the performance and the independence of the Internal Auditors and the External Auditors. The Committee
is also tasked with the responsibility of recommending to the Board the re-appointment and change of External Auditors and to
recommend their remuneration and terms of engagement.
In fulfilling its purpose, it is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to maintain a free and open communication with the Independent
External Auditors, the outsourced Internal Auditors and the Management of the Company and the Subsidiary, and to ensure that all
parties are aware of their responsibilities.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors appointed by and responsible to the Board of Directors. The
Audit Committee consists of four independent, non-executive Directors in conformity with the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange, who are,
Mr. M P Jayawardena - Chairman
Mr. S H Amarasekera
Mr. A D E I Perera
Mr. R Pieris
The Audit Committee comprises of individuals with extensive experience and expertise in the fields of Finance, Corporate Management,
Legal and Marketing. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a Chartered Accountant. A brief profile of each member of the Audit
Committee is given on page 15 of this report under the section Board of Directors.

Meetings of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee meets as often as may be deemed necessary or appropriate in its judgment, and at least quarterly each year.
During the year under review there were six (06) meetings and attendance of the Committee members are given below.
The CEO, CFO and the Head of Finance attended such meetings by invitation and briefed the committee on specific issues. The
External Auditors and the Internal Auditors were also invited to attend meetings when necessary. The proceedings of the Audit
Committee are reported to the Board of Directors by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings
Name

26th April
2011

13th May
2011

27th July
2011

25th October
2011

19th January
2012

28th
February
2012

Mr. M. P. Jayawardena

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. S. H. Amarasekera

Y

N

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. A. D. E. I. Perera

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. R. Pieris

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y
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Summary of Activities during the Financial Year
Oversight of Company and Consolidated Financial Statements
The Committee reviewed with the independent External Auditors who are responsible for expressing an opinion on the truth and
fairness of the audited Financial Statements and their conformity with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS).
The Committee also reviewed the Accounting Policies of the Company and such other matters as are required to be discussed with
the independent External Auditors in compliance with the Sri Lanka Auditing Standard 260 – Communication of Audit Matters with
those charged with Governance. The quarterly Financial Statements were also reviewed by the Committee and recommended their
adoption to the Board.
The Committee also reviewed the process to assess the effectiveness of the internal Financial Controls that have been designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the Directors that the Financial Reporting System can be relied upon in preparation and presentation
of the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group.
Internal Audit
The internal audit function has been outsourced to Messrs. Price waterhouse Coopers (Private) Limited, a firm of Chartered
Accountants.
The Audit Committee has agreed with the Internal Auditor as to the frequency of audits to be carried out, the scope of the audit, the
areas to be covered and the fee to be paid for their services.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met with the Internal Auditors to consider their reports, management responses
and matters requiring follow up on the effectiveness of internal controls and audit recommendations.
The internal audit frequency depends on the risk profile of each area, higher risk areas being on a shorter audit cycle. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the above approach provides an optimal balance between the need to manage risk and the costs
thereof.
Risk and Control Review
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Business Risk Management Process and procedures adopted by the Company to manage
and mitigate the effects of such risks and observe that the risk analysis exercise has been conducted within the Company. The key
risks that could impact operations have been identified and wherever necessary, appropriate action has been taken to mitigate their
impact to the minimum extent.
External Audit
The External Auditors of the Company Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants submitted a detailed audit plan for the financial
year 2011/2012, which specified, inter alia, the areas of operations to be covered in respect of the Company. The audit plan specified
‘areas of special emphasis’ which had been identified from the last audit and from a review of current operations. The Audit Committee
had meetings with the External Auditors to review the scope, timelines of the audit plan and approach for the audits.
The areas of special emphasis have been selected due to the probability of error and the material impact it can have on the Financial
Statements. At the conclusion of the audit, the External Auditors met with the Audit Committee to discuss and agree on the treatment
of any matter of concern discovered in the course of the audit and also to discuss the Audit Management Letters. Actions taken by
the Management in response to the issues raised were discussed with the CEO. There were no issues of significance during the year
under review.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the audit fees of the External Auditors of the Company and recommends its adoption by the Board.
It also reviewed other services provided by the auditors in ensuring that their independence as auditors was not compromised.
The Audit Committee has proposed to the Board of Directors that Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, be recommended
for reappointment as auditors for the financial year commencing 01st April 2012 at the next Annual General Meeting.
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Compliance with financial reporting and statutory requirements
The Audit Committee receives a quarterly declaration from the CEO, CFO and the Head of Finance, listing any departures from
Financial Reporting, statutory requirements and Group policies. Reported exceptions, if any, are followed up to ensure that appropriate
corrective action has been taken. With a view of ensuring uniformity of reporting, the Group has adopted the standardised format of
Annual Financial Statements developed by the Parent Company.
Convergence to Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS)
The Committee also reviewed the Company’s readiness for the convergence of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS) to be in
line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to be adopted locally from January 2012 as Sri Lanka Financial Reporting
Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS and noted that the Company has completed a gap analysis to identify
areas requiring action, in consultation with External Auditors. The Audit Committee was apprised of on an ongoing basis, the progress
of this project, significant changes to the applicable Accounting Policies and the implications of adopting SLFRS and LKAS. The
management has confirmed to the Audit Committee that the Company is ready to adopt SLFRS and LKAS for the financial year
starting 1st April 2012.
Support to the Committee
The Committee received the necessary support and information from the management of the Company and the Subsidiary during the
year to enable them to carry out its duties and responsibilities effectively.
Conclusion
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the effectiveness of the organisational structure of the Company and the Subsidiary, in the
implementation of accounting policies and operational controls, provide reasonable assurance that the affairs of the Company
and the Subsidiary are managed in accordance with accepted policies and that assets are properly accounted for and adequately
safeguarded.

Preethi Jayawardena
Chairman, Audit Committee
25 May 2012
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Enterprise Risk Management
Introduction
Keells Food Products PLC is exposed to various forms of industrial, operational, environmental and financial risk arising from
transactions entered into and the economic environment within which it operates. Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), an integral
part of ‘Sustainability’ at John Keells Group, forms a part of our business process. The objective of the Risk Management Strategy
of the Company is to identify and mange risk, risk mitigation, harness opportunities, adopt to changing environment and adopt long
term and short term strategies which link well with the overall objectives of the Company and the John Keells Group.
The individual risk categories are founded on the success factors which are critical for the implementation and attainment of the
Company objectives. The risks in the Company are identified and analysed using a uniform risk grid, which over the years has been
adopted by the John Keells Group. The key operational, strategic and financial risks include areas such as socio-economic factors,
competition, internal processes, procurement, products, currency and interest rate fluctuations, information technology and human
resources.
The ERM Framework adopted by the John Keells Group and implemented by the Company involves the following:

i.

Identification of types of Risk

A Risk Event
Any event with a degree of uncertainty which, if occurs, may result in the Organisation or Business Unit not meeting its stated
objectives.
Core Sustainability Risks
Core Sustainability Risks are defined as those risks having a catastrophic impact to and from the organisation, but may have a very
low or nil probability of occurrence.
These are risks that threaten the sustainability or long term viability of a business and are typically risks stemming from our impact on
the environment or society that will have an eventual negative impact on the longevity of our business operations.

ii.		Establishment of Risk Grid with Likelihood of Occurrence and Severity of Impact
Using the guideline in Table 1, a Risk Grid is established for the Company. Every Risk is analysed in terms of Likelihood of Occurrence
and Severity of Impact assigning a number ranging from 1 (low probability/impact) to 5 (high probability/impact) to signify the
possibility of occurrence and the level of impact to the organisation. Please see Table 1 for further details.

iii.

Establishment of Level of Risk based on above

Based on the values assigned for each individual risk, using the matrix given in Table 1, a level of risk is established by multiplying the
Likelihood of Occurrence with Severity of Impact.
The Color Matrix implies the
following;

Impact/ Severity

Table 1 Guideline for Rating Risks

  

5

Catastrophic/ Extreme Impact

4

Major/ Very High Impact

3

Moderate/ High Impact

2

Minor Impact

2

1

Low/ Insignificant Impact

5

1

Ultra High

15 - 25

2

High

9 - 14

5

3

Medium

4-8

Almost
certain to
occur

4

Low

2-3

5

Insignificant 1

4

8

12

16

20

6

9

12

15

4

6

8

10

2

3

4

Unlikely to Possible to
occur
occur

Likely to
occur

2

3

4

Occurrence/Likelihood
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Score

3
1

1

Colour
Code

15

Rare /
Remote to
occur

20

Priority
Level
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5

i.

Quarterly review of the risks identified using the above framework by the Company

It is the responsibility of the CEO and the risk management team to ensure that each risk item is tracked over the course of the year
(reviewed at least on a quarterly basis) and to ensure the mitigation actions identified during the risk review process is being carried
out adequately.
This ensures that the Company has a ‘living’ document that is updated based on internal and external conditions.

ii.

Risk Profiling

The Company’s Risk Management Team with the assistance from Enterprise Risk Management Division of the John Keells Group will
track the changes of impact and occurrence of risks over time.
Risk Universe
The identified risks are broadly classified into the Risk Universe as identified by the John Keells Group. The Risk Universe is as follows
in Table 2.
Table 2. Risk Universe

Related Risks

Headline
Risk

External
Environment

Business
Strategies &
Policies

Business Process

Organisation &
People

Analysing &
Reporting

Technology & Data

Competitor

Capital &
Finance

Operations
- Planning,
Production,
Process

Skills/
Competency/
Motivation

Budgeting/
Financial
Planning

Data Relevance &
Integrity

Catastrophic
Loss

Strategy &
Innovation

Operations Technology,
Design, Execution,
Continuity

Change
Readiness

Accounting/ Tax
Information

Data Processing
Integrity

Customer
Expectations

Business/
Product
Portfolio

Resource Capacity
& Allocation

Communication

External
Reporting &
Disclosures

Technology
Reliability &
Recovery

Macro
Economic

Organization
Structure

Vendor/Partner
Reliance

Performance
Incentives

Pricing /
Margins

IT Security

Foreign
Exchange and
Interest Rates

Stakeholders

Channel
Effectiveness

Accountability

Market
Intelligence

IT processes

Weather &
Climate

Investment
& Mergers &
Acquisitions

Interdependency

Corruption,
Fraud & Abuse

Contract
Commitment

Environment,
Health and
Safety

Customer
Satisfaction

Knowledge/
Intellectual
Capital

Insurable risks

Legal, Regulatory
Compliance

Change
Integration

Innovation

Labor Relations

Property &
Equipment Damage

Attrition

Utilities
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Enterprise Risk Management Contd.
Bottom Up Approach of Risk Management
John Keells
Risk Universe
Headline
Risks

External
Environment

Business
Strategies &
Policies

Business
Process

JKH PLC Audit Committee

Risk Normalisation

Group Executive Committee (GEC)

Risk Validation

Listed Company Audit Committee

Analysis &
Reporting

JK Group
Review
Risk Report &
Action
BU Review &
Sector Risk
Report & Action

Group Management Committee

Normalisation

Business Unit
Operational Units

BU Risk Report
& Action

Technology
&
Data

• Risk Management Team
• Risk & Control Review Team
• Sustainability Integration

Risk
Presentation

Organisation
& People

Report Content

As shown in the above diagram, a “bottom-up” approach is taken to Enterprise Risk Management within the John Keells Group as
depicted above, the Company identifies relevant risks, which are then presented to the Group Management Committee headed by
the President of the Industry Group and subsequently presented to the Company Audit Committee.
The significant risk areas that impact the achievement of the strategic business objectives of the Company and the measures taken
to address these risks are given below;

Product Liability
The Company has identified Product liability which can arise due to fault in the product as a core risk. Over the years the Company
has taken several steps to mitigate this risk which includes certifying the manufacturing processes in ISO 9001(2008) and ISO 22000,
adherence to GMP and Food safety standards, compliance to all Consumer Affairs Authority rules and regulations and other statutory
regulations. Further the Company has established a Hot line to convey any message regarding the products to the Company officials
and an internal mechanism has been established to address these suggestions or complains promptly.

Capacity
The Company is presently faced with certain capacity limitations in production and has identified this constraint as another core risk.
During certain peak demand months of the financial year the Company has to prioritise production of items to get the maximum
benefit of the available capacity. The Management has with the advice from the Board of Directors mapped out plans to increase the
capacity during the next financial year by expanding the production facilities and other auxiliary services.

Brand and Company Product Portfolio
Products manufactured and sold by the Company have a leading house hold brand name with high brand equity. Therefore it must
be managed and protected to survive and prosper in the years to come. The irreparable damage done to the brand following a crisis
or catastrophe may substantially outweigh the immediate and visible costs. The strategies used to manage brand risks include
quantitative and qualitative tools, including market intelligence and competitive intelligence management systems, with a focus on
negating potential risk factors, as well as developed proactive risk management practices for our brands.

Competitor activity and demand for Company products
The Company faces stiff competition from other processed meat manufacturers. The Company has formulated a basis on which
the Company competes with such manufacturers which revolve mainly on Brand identification, product portfolio, availability,
communication, quality and distribution.
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Price Volatility of Raw Materials
The Company’s manufacturing costs are largely dependant upon the cost of meat sourced from local suppliers. Over the last few
years, there has been significant price volatility in the market specially in the chicken and pork categories. We have mitigated some of
the risks associated with price volatility as well as availability by entering into contracts and identifying overseas suppliers to import
during times when there is scarcity in local supply. Further, we have built a strong relationship with farmer communities and other local
suppliers through the CSR initiatives to ensure continuous supply at stable price levels.

Stability of Distribution Channels
Stability of distribution channels largely depend on the viability and consistent performance of our distributors. It is extremely important
to ensure the continued services of the distributors to deliver the Company products to end consumers. The Company has a stringent
process for selection of distributors and monitors the distributor performance on an on going basis and guide and supports them to
ensure the viability and growth of their business.

Human Resources (HR)
Key HR areas ranging from recruitment and selection, career management, performance management, training and development,
competency frameworks and coaching skills to talent appreciation, reward and recognition and compensation and benefits have
been reviewed and revised to modern standards.
The Company has 453 employees in its cadre and 267 of the staff are represented by unions. A deterioration of labor relations
or a significant increase in labour costs would have a significant impact on the Company’s results. With a view to addressing the
above concerns, key HR areas ranging from performance management, training and development, coaching and mentoring skills
to reward and recognition and compensation and benefits have all been reviewed and revised in keeping with modern trends and
methodologies. The Company maintains a dialogue, on a proactive basis with unionised employees to maintain cordial industrial
relations.
Deficiencies in skills/ knowledge/training amongst existing staff cadre is identified as an area for improvement and the Company
has deployed specialized training programs which are targeted to improve specialized skills and knowledge. Limited availability
of specialised staff in the market is also a matter of concern. The Company believes in succession planning to overcome this risk
and has in place various personal development programmes to develop skills and capabilities of internal staff to take over higher
responsibilities and challenges

Fraud and Corruption
The Company promotes an organizational culture that is committed to the highest level of honesty and ethical dealings and will not
tolerate any act of fraud or corruption. The Anti Corruption Policy is designed to put these principles into practice. It is the Company
policy to protect itself and its resources from fraud and other similar malpractices, whether by members of the public, contractors,
sub-contractors, agents, intermediaries or its own employees.
Apart from the legal consequences of fraud and corruption, improper acts have the potential to damage the Company’s image and
reputation and financial position. Unresolved allegations can also undermine an otherwise credible position and reflect negatively on
innocent individuals. All staff must be above fraud and corruption. Sanctions will apply to those who are not. In addition, staff must
act so they are not perceived to be involved in such activities. Through transparent and accountable decision-making, together with
open discussion by staff and managers about the risks of fraud and corruption, the Company seeks to foster an organisational culture
which does not tolerate fraud or corruption.

Vulnerabilities from IT related Risks
Dedicated professionals and use of appropriate software ensures continuity of business operations and safeguard from IT related
risks including the setting up of early warning mechanism to mitigate possible infrastructure failure.

Exposure to Credit Facilities
Credit facilities are offered to the Company’s customers in keeping with the business environment. This may expose the Company to
default of payments. The Company mitigates such risk by offering credit within set limits following an evaluation of creditworthiness
together with measures to adequately safeguard exposures with sufficient asset backed securities.
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Enterprise Risk Management Contd.
Reliance on Effective Internal Controls
Segregation of duties, definition of authority limits, operating manuals, detective & preventive controls and internal and external audit
procedures which are independent of each other enable the management to ensure that the operations are being carried out as per
laid down procedures.

Meeting Quality Expectations
The food manufacturing industry is subject to general risks of food spoilage or contamination, consumer preferences with respect
to nutrition and health related concerns, governmental regulations, consumer liability claims etc. Our quality assurance system
administered by qualified specialists using international benchmarks considers all continuous product and process innovations
necessary to maintain the Company’s competitive edge and avoid any regulatory, health and nutrition related concerns. The
Company’s risk management strategy has identified such risks and set in motion an action plan to mitigate the results of such
risks. Towards addressing nutritional concerns the Company has a food nutritionist validating all products nutritional standards.
With respect to Governmental regulations, the Company ensures only ingredients that satisfy international standards are used in
its product formulation. The Company also ensures compliance to the ISO 22000 food safety standard with the conduct of regular
internal and external audits as applicable to the industries and product lines we operate.

Liquidity
Exposure to liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the company’s business activities and includes the risk of being unable to
fund the business activities in a timely manner. The Company managers its liquidity risk by marinating sufficient cash and available
funding through unutilised credit facilities from various banks.

Ensure Compliance Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Compliance Risk is managed through the use of legal advice from appropriately qualified and experienced legal professionals
supplemented by the John Keells Holdings legal team. We have put in place periodic reporting of compliance by the respective
Functional Managers.

Changes in Interest Rates
The Company’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt taking advantage of the changes
in the market rates. Guidance received from the Group Treasury division with respect to forecasting of exchange rates, interest rates
etc has been of immense value in management of this risk exposure.
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Financial Calendar
First Quarter Released on
Second Quarter Released on
Third Quarter Released on
Third Quarter Released on
Annual Report 2011/2012
Thirtieth Annual General Meeting

29 July 2011
4 November 2011
24 January 2012
25 May 2012
1 June 2012
26 June 2012

Financial Information
Annual Report of the Board of Directors
The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility
Independent Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheet
Income Statement
Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Changes in Equity
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of Keells Food Products PLC has pleasure in presenting their Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements of Keells Food Products PLC and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
March 2012.
The content in this report has taken into consideration the requirements of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 and the relevant listing
rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

General
The Company was incorporated on 5th November 1982 as a Public Limited Liability Company and the shares of the Company are
listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the requirements of the new Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the Company was
re-registered and obtained a new Company Number PQ 3 on 15th June 2007.

Principal Activities
Company
The principal activities of the Company remained unchanged as manufacture and sale of processed meat, crumbed products and
raw meats.
Subsidiaries
The principal activity of John Keells Food India Private Limited is marketing of processed meat products. The Company was
incorporated on 07th April 2008.
Keells Food Products Mauritius (Pvt) Limited is an Investment Company and was incorporated on 31st July 2008. This Company
was de registered on the 8th of November 2010. Keells Food Products Mauritius (Pvt) Limited was removed from the register of the
Registrar of Companies in Mauritius, in terms of the Mauritius Companies Act with effect from the 26th of April 2011, pursuant of an
application made by the Company in this regard.
Business Review
A review of the Group’s performance during the financial year is given in the Chairman’s Review and the Management Discussion
and Analysis section. These reports form an integral part of the Directors Report and provide a fair review of the performance of the
Company and the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2012.
Future Developments
The Chairman’s Review and the Management Discussion and Analysis provide a review of the future developments of the Group.
Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the Company and Group are set out on pages 52 to 77 of the Annual Report.
Independent Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on page 51 of the Annual Report.
Significant Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements are given on pages 56 to 64 of the Annual Report.
There were no significant changes in the Accounting Policies adopted in the previous year.
Going Concern
The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company and the Subsidiary have adequate resources to continue its operations in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly the Financial Statements are prepared based on the “going concern concept”.
Stated Capital
The total Stated Capital of the Company as at 31 March 2012 was Rs. 274.8 million (2010/11 - Rs. 274.8 million). The Stated Capital
of the Company comprises of 8,500,000 Ordinary Shares fully paid up.
Revenue
The net revenue of the Company for the year was Rs. 2,329 million (2010/11 - Rs. 2,163 million), whilst the consolidated net revenue
of the Group also amounted to Rs 2,329 million (2010/11 - Rs. 2,196 million).
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Results and Appropriations
Synopsis of the results and appropriations of the Group and the Company are given below.
Group Results and Appropriations

Group
2012
Rs.’000

Group
2011
Rs.’000

Company
2012
Rs.’000

Company
2011
Rs.’000

Profit after providing for bad and doubtful debts, for
all known liabilities and depreciation on Property,
Plant & Equipment and before charging Interest and
Taxation.

188,204

110,209

187,924

25,146

Finance Expenses
Profit before Taxation

(7,560)
180,644

(14,657)
95,552

(7,560)
180,364

(14,657)
10,489

Income Tax Expense

(51,005)

(65,189)

(51,005)

(65,189)

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation
Balance brought forward from the previous year

129,639
(64,299)

30,363
(94,661)

129,359
(69,827)

(54,700)
(15,127)

65,340

(64,298)

59,532

(69,827)

Balance carried forward

Provision for Taxation
Provision for taxation has been computed at the rates given in Note 21 to the Financial Statements.
Segment Reporting
A segmental analysis of the activities of the Company and the Group is given in Note 16.1 to the Financial Statements.
Related Party Transactions
Related party transactions that exceed the lower of 10% of equity or 5% of total assets of the Company is as detailed below;
Jaykay Marketing Services Pvt Ltd - Rs. 454.5 million (2010/11 - Rs. 402.1 million)
Corporate Donations
During the year the Company made donations amounting to Rs. 0.7 million (2010/11 - Rs. 0.7 million). No further donations were
made by the subsidiary.
Dividends
The Directors have declared a first and final dividend of Rs.2.00 per share for the year ended 31st March 2012, from the profits
available for appropriation. The total dividend payout amounts to Rs.17million.
In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards No 12 (Revised), Events after the Balance Sheet date, the declared dividend has
not been recognized as a liability as at 31 March 2012.
As required by Section 56 (2) of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company satisfies
the Solvency Test in accordance with section 57 of Companies Act No 7 of 2007 and have obtained a certificate from the Auditors
prior to declaring the first and final dividend of Rs. 2.00 per share for the year.
The dividends paid out are out of taxable profits of the Company and will be subjected to a 10% withholding tax.
Property, Plant & Equipment
Information relating to the movement in property, plant and equipment is given in Note 2 to the Financial Statements. Capital
expenditure of the Company and the Group on acquisition of property, plant and equipment during the year amounted to Rs. 28
million (2010/11 - Rs. 14.5 million).
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
Market Value of Property
The Land and Buildings owned by the Company were re-valued by a professionally qualified valuer as at 31 March 2008. The
Directors are of the opinion that the re-valued amounts are not in excess of the current market values of such properties. The details
of the re-valued land and buildings of the Company as well as the extent of land, location and number of buildings are given in Note
2 of the Financial Statements and the real estate portfolio on page 81 of the Annual Report.
Investments
Investments of the Company as at 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs. 6 million (2010/11 – Rs. 6 million) after making a provision in the
previous year for fall in value of investments amounting to Rs.120.8 million. Detailed description of the long term investments held as
at the Balance Sheet date is given in Note 3 to the Financial Statements.
Reserves
The Reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2011 amounted to Rs. 174.6 million (2010/11 Rs. 45.3 million) whilst the Group
Reserves as at 31st March 2012 amounted to Rs. 177.6 million (2010/11-Rs. 48.1 million) details of which are stated in Note 9 and
10 to the Financial Statements.
Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
No material events have occurred after the Balance Sheet date which requires adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial Statements,
other than as stated in Note 25 of the Financial Statements.
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
There were no material contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2012.
Outstanding Litigation
In the opinion of the Directors and in consultation with the Company lawyers, litigation currently pending against the Company will
not have a material impact on the reported financial results or future operations of the Company.
Human Resources
The number of persons directly employed by the Company as at 31 March 2012 was 453 (31 March 2011 - 440).
The Group is committed to pursuing various HR initiatives that ensure the individual development of all our team as well as facilitating
the creation of value for themselves, the Group and all other stakeholders.
There were no material issues pertaining to employees and industrial relations in the year under review.
System of Internal Controls
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the system of Internal Control and having conducted a review of Internal Controls
covering financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management, have obtained reasonable assurance of their effectiveness
and successful adherence for the period up to the date of signing the Financial Statements.
Enterprise Governance
Enterprise Governance practices and principles with respect to the management and operations of the Company and the Group
are set out on pages 22 to 34 of this report. The Directors confirm that the Company is in compliance with the Rules on Corporate
Governance contained in the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The Directors declare that:
 The Company and the Subsidiary Company have not engaged in any activities, which contravene laws and regulations
 The Directors have declared all material interests in contracts involving the Company and refrained from voting on matters in
which they were materially involved.
 The Company has made all endeavours to ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders.
 A review of Internal Controls covering financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management has been conducted,
and the Directors have obtained a reasonable assurance of their effectiveness and successful adherence.
Risk Management
The Board and executive management of the Group have put in place a comprehensive risk identification, measurement and mitigation
process. The risk management process is an integral part of the annual strategic planning cycle. A detailed overview of the process
is outlined in the Risk Management Report on pages 38 to 42.
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Audit Committee
The Following Non Executive Independent Directors serve on the Audit Committee;
Mr. M P Jayawardena - Chairman
Mr. S H Amarasekara
Mr. A D E I Perera
Mr. R Pieris
The report of the Audit Committee is given on pages 35 & 37 of this Annual Report.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the other services provided by the External Auditors to the Group to ensure that their independence
as Auditor has not been compromised.
Remuneration Committee
As permitted by the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, the Remuneration Committee of John Keells Holding PLC, the
Parent Company of Keells Food Products PLC, functions as the Remuneration Committee of the Company and the Subsidiary. The
Remuneration Committee of John Keells Holding PLC comprises of four Non Executive Independent Directors
Mr. Franklyn Amerasinghe - Chairman
Mrs. S Tiruchelvam
Dr. I Coomaraswamy
Mr. A R Gunesekara
The Remuneration Policy of the Company and the Subsidiary is detailed in the Enterprise Governance Report on Page 26 of the
Annual Report.
Share Information
Information relating to earnings, dividends, net assets and market value per share is given in the Decade at a Glance on page 80.
Information on share trading is given on page 79 of this report.
Shareholdings
There were 995 registered shareholders, holding ordinary voting shares as at 31st March 2012 (931 registered shareholders as at 31st
March 2011). The distribution of shareholdings including the percentage held by the public is given on page 78 of this report. The
company has made every endeavour to ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders.
Stock Market Information
An Ordinary share of the Company was quoted on the Colombo Stock Exchange at Rs.100 as at 31 March 2012 (Rs. 150 31 March 2011). Information relating to earnings, dividends, net assets and market value per share is given in “Key Ratios and
Information” on page 81 and in the Your Share in Detail on page 79.
Substantial Shareholdings
The names of the twenty largest shareholders, the number of shares held and the percentage held are given on page 79 of the Annual
Report. The distribution schedule of the shareholders and public holdings are found on page 78 of the Annual Report.
Directorate
As at 31st March 2012 the Board of Directors of Keells Food Products PLC consisted of 8 Directors.
A brief profile of the directors pertaining to their qualifications and the experience appear on pages 15 to 16 of the Annual Report. The
following persons served as Directors of the company during the year and as at 31st March 2012;
Mr. S. C. Ratnayake (Chairman)
Mr. A. D. Gunewardene
Mr. J. R. F. Peiris
Mr. J. R. Gunaratne
Mr. S. H. Amarasekera
Mr. A. D. E. I. Perera
Mr. R. Pieris
Mr. M. P. Jayawardena
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(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
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The Board of Directors of John Keells Foods India (Private) Limited who served during the year and as at the end of the financial year
are given below. No other Director held office during the period under review.
Mr. S. C. Ratnayake (Chairman)
Mr. R. S. Fernando
Mr. J. R. Gunaratne
Mr. J. R. F. Peiris

-

(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent) Resigned on 1 August 2011

Retirement of Directors by rotation or otherwise and their Re-election
Mr. Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne and Mr. Ranil Pieris retire by rotation in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.
Directors and CEO Shareholding
Shareholding of Directors, the CEO and of their spouses in the Company are as follows.

Name of Directors
Mr. S. C. Ratnayake
Mr. A. D. Gunewardene
Mr. J. R. F. Peiris
Mr. J. R. Gunaratne
Mr. S. H. Amarasekera
Mr. A. D. E. I. Perera
Mr. R. Pieris
Mr. M. P. Jayawardena
Mr. R. F. N. Jayasooriya - CEO

Number of shares
As at 31/03/2012
As at 31/03/2011
4,250
4,250
-

Directors Remuneration
The details of fees paid to the Directors are set out in Note 20 to the Financial Statements.
Directors’ Meetings
Details of Directors’ meetings are presented on page 25 of this report.

Interests Register
The Company has maintained an Interests Register as contemplated by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.
In compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, this Annual Report contains particulars of entries made in
the Interests Register.
Particulars of Entries in the Interests Register
a) Interests in Contracts
The Directors have all made a General Disclosure to the Board of Directors in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act No.7 of 2007.
b)

Share Dealings
There have been no disclosures of share dealings as at 31st March 2012.

c)

Indemnities and Remuneration
The Non-Executive Directors of the Company received an increment in fees with effect from 1 August 2011, as recommended
by the Remuneration Committee of John Keells Holdings PLC (being its Holding Company and as permitted by the Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange) which increase is commensurate with the market and complexities of the business of the Company.
The fees payable to non-executive nominees of John Keells Holdings PLC are paid to John Keells Holdings PLC and not to
individual directors.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary to reflect a true and
fair view of the state of its affairs. The Directors are of the view that these Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with
the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards
Act No. 15 of 1995and the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
Convergence with SLFRS / LKAS
Sri Lanka has taken a decision to converge fully with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) with effect from 1st
January 2012. The Group commenced working towards this goal during 2010/11with the help of an external consultant and John
Keells Group. The Group will publish its 2012/13 first quarter results in accordance with these new / revised Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Company has complied with all applicable laws and regulations. A compliance checklist is signed on a quarterly basis by
responsible officers and any violations are reported to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.
Suppliers
The Group endeavours to transact business with reputed organisations capable of offering quality goods and services at competitive
prices with a view to building mutually beneficial business relationships.
Statutory payments
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge all taxes, duties and levies payable by the Group and all contributions, levies and
taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the Group and all other known statutory dues as were due and payable
by Group as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or where relevant provided.
Environment Protection
The Group is conscious of the impact, direct and indirect, on the environment due to its business activities. Every endeavour is made
to minimize the adverse effects on the environment to ensure sustainable continuity of our resources.
Auditors
The Financial Statements for the year have been audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants, who are the retiring
Auditors and have expressed their willingness to continue as auditors of the Company and a resolution proposing their reappointment
as auditors and authorising the directors to fix their remuneration will be tabled at the Annual General Meeting.
The Independent Auditors’ Report to the shareholders is given on page 51.
The Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the Auditor, its effectiveness, independence and its relationship with the Company,
including the level of audit and non - audit fees paid to the Auditor.
Notice of Meeting
The Notice of Meeting relating to the 30th Annual General Meeting is given on page 83 of the Annual Report.
This Annual Report is signed for and behalf of the Board of Directors.

By Order of the Board
Keells Food Products PLC

J. R. Gunaratne
Director

J. R. F. Peiris
Director

Keells Consultants (Private) Limited
Secretaries

25 May 2012
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The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility
The responsibility of the Directors, in relation to the Financial Statements, is set out in the following statement.
The responsibility of the Auditors, in relation to the Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007, is set out in the Independent Auditors Report on page 51 of the Annual Report.
The Financial Statements comprise of:


A Balance Sheet, which presents a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its Subsidiary as at the end of
the financial year; and



An Income Statement which presents a true and fair view of the profit and loss of the Company and its Subsidiary for the financial
year.

The Directors are required to confirm that the Financial Statements have been prepared:


Using appropriate Accounting Policies, which have been selected and applied in a consistent manner and material departures,
if any have been disclosed and explained; and



Presented in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards; and that



Reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been made so that the form and substance of transactions are properly
reflected; and



Provides the information required by and otherwise comply with the Companies Act and the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange

The Directors are also required to ensure that the Company and its Subsidiary have adequate resources to justify applying the going
concern basis in preparing these Financial Statements.
Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that the Company and its Subsidiary maintain sufficient accounting records to
disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and of the Subsidiary.
The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and of the Group, and in this
regard to give a proper consideration to the establishment of appropriate Internal Control systems with a view to preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements and to provide the Auditors with every opportunity to take whatever
steps and undertake whatever inspections they may consider to be appropriate to enable them to give their Audit opinion.
Further, as required by section 56(2) of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company,
based on the information available, satisfies the solvency test immediately after the distribution, in accordance with Section 57 of the
Companies Act No.7 of 2007, and has obtained a certificate from the Auditors, prior to declaring first and final dividend of Rs. 2.00
per share for this year to be paid on 6th June 2012.
The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies payable by the Company and its Subsidiary, all
contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of the employees of the Company and its Subsidiary, and all other known statutory
dues as were due and payable by the Company and its Subsidiary as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or, where relevant
provided for except as specified in note 24 to the Financial Statements covering contingent liabilities.
By Order of the Board

Keells Consultants Private Limited
Secretaries
25 May 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KEELS FOOD PRODUCTS PLC
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keells Food Products PLC (“Company”), the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary which comprise the balance sheets as at 31 March 2012, and the income statements,
statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.
We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Company maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31
March 2012 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s state of affairs as at 31 March 2012 and its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2012 and the profit
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the Company and its subsidiary dealt
with thereby, so far as concerns the shareholders of the Company.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, these financial statements also comply with the requirements of Section 151(2) and Sections 153(2) to 153(7) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

25 May 2012
Colombo
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Balance Sheet
Group

Company

As at 31 March
Note
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Assets
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
2
Investment in Subsidiaries
3
Other Non-current Assets
4.1
		

189,235,534
33,959,019
223,194,553

173,635,229
18,635,999
192,271,228

189,235,534
6,132,376
33,959,019
229,326,929

173,635,229
6,132,376
18,635,999
198,403,604

Current Assets
Inventories
5
Trade and Other Receivables
6
Amounts due from Related Parties
23.1
Short Term Investments
7
Cash in Hand and at Bank
7
		
Total Assets		

291,549,291
228,065,883
59,144,063
7,236,621
9,621,949
595,617,807
818,812,360

298,548,217
212,169,165
64,675,298
8,957,384
1,839,136
586,189,200
778,460,428

291,549,291
224,030,088
59,144,063
8,831,748
583,555,190
812,882,119

298,548,217
209,699,673
64,675,298
1,393,743
574,316,931
772,720,535

Equity and Liabilities
Stated Capital
8
Capital Reserves
9
Revenue Reserves
10
Total Equity		

274,815,000
94,653,862
82,957,878
452,426,740

274,815,000
94,653,862
(46,506,114)
322,962,748

274,815,000
94,653,862
79,970,847
449,439,709

274,815,000
94,653,862
(49,387,761)
320,081,101

Non-current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities
11
Employee Benefit Liabilities
12
		

2,901,234
54,939,342
57,840,576

2,779,880
50,648,242
53,428,122

2,901,234
54,939,342
57,840,576

2,779,880
50,648,242
53,428,122

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
13
208,863,557
Amounts due to Related Parties
23.2
7,357,493
Income Tax Liabilities
14
5,504,171
Short Term Borrowings-Related Parties
15
Bank Overdrafts
7
86,819,823
		
308,545,044
Total Equity and Liabilities		 818,812,360

169,592,278
8,791,540
25,330,329
81,902,185
116,453,226
402,069,558
778,460,428

205,920,347
7,357,493
5,504,171
86,819,823
305,601,834
812,882,119

166,734,032
8,791,540
25,330,329
81,902,185
116,453,226
399,211,312
772,720,535

I certify that the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007.

S.R. Jayaweera
Chief Financial Officer
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board by,

J.R. Gunaratne
Director

J.R.F Peiris
Director

25 May 2012
The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on pages 56 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Income Statement
Group
For the year ended 31 March
Note
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

16

2,328,751,844

2,196,156,376

2,328,751,844

2,162,880,267

Cost of Sales		

(1,766,954,656)

(1,666,073,373)

(1,766,954,656)

(1,650,583,338)

Gross Profit		

561,797,188

530,083,003

561,797,188

512,296,929

17

13,499,672

8,883,337

10,826,938

22,427,416

Distribution Expenses		

(248,273,214)

(252,615,245)

(248,311,977)

(238,116,685)

Administrative Expenses		

(96,254,575)

(104,849,934)

(94,077,150)

(87,255,765)

3

-

-

-

(120,755,190)

Other Operating Expenses

18

(42,565,283)

(71,292,106)

(42,311,267)

(63,450,344)

Finance Expenses

19

(7,560,071)

(14,657,204)

(7,560,071)

(14,657,204)

Profit Before Tax

20

180,643,717

95,551,851

180,363,661

10,489,157

Income Tax Expense

21

(51,005,053)

(65,188,780)

(51,005,053)

(65,188,780)

Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year		 129,638,664

30,363,071

129,358,608

(54,699,623)

Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Parent		
129,638,664
Minority Interest		
		 129,638,664

30,363,071
30,363,071
-

-

Revenue

Other Operating Income

Impairment of Foreign Investment

Basic Earnings Per Share

22

15.25

3.57

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on pages 56 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Cash Flow Statement
Group
For the year ended 31 March
Note
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

A

198,953,261

133,653,694

199,010,613

168,249,721

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories		
Increase in Trade and Other Receivables		
(Increase)/ Decrease in Amounts Due From Related Parties		
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables		
Increase/ (Decrease) in Amounts Due to Related Parties		
Cash Generated from / (Used In) Operations		

6,998,926
(12,914,411)
5,531,235
39,271,279
(1,434,047)
236,406,243

(107,167,074)
(25,347,607)
(14,478,373)
(41,040,108)
(3,405,045)
(57,784,513)

6,998,926
(11,348,109)
5,531,235
39,186,315
(1,434,047)
237,944,933

(114,571,663)
(33,120,125)
(14,478,373)
946,356
(2,237,914)
4,788,002

Interest Received		
Finance Expenses		
Tax / Economic Service Charge Paid		
Employment Benefit Obligations Costs Paid (Net of Transfers)		
Net Cash Flow from / (Used In) Operating Activities		

4,026,512
(7,560,071)
(70,709,857)
(1,386,045)
160,776,782

1,071,184
(14,657,204)
(18,300,083)
(3,165,812)
(92,836,428)

3,689,104
(7,560,071)
(70,709,857)
(1,386,045)
161,978,064

330,338
(14,657,204)
(18,300,083)
(3,165,812)
(31,004,759)

Cash Flows From / (Used in) Investing Activities
Purchase and Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Investment in Subsidiaries		
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Net of Staff Loan Recovered		
Net Cash Flow From / (Used in) Investing Activities		

(28,004,778)
3,538,285
(18,537,978)
(43,004,471)

(14,503,053)
806,482
(7,175,483)
(20,872,054)

(28,004,778)
3,538,285
(18,537,978)
(43,004,471)

(14,503,053)
(36,859,528)
70,000
(7,175,483)
(58,468,064)

Cash Flow From / (Used in) Financing Activity
Net of Receipt/ (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings		
Net Cash Flow From / (Used in) Financing Activity		

(81,902,185)
(81,902,185)

36,902,185
36,902,185

(81,902,185)
(81,902,185)

35,716,362
35,716,362

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents		
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year		
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year		

35,870,126
(105,656,707)
(69,786,581)

(76,806,297)
(28,359,680)
(105,165,977)

37,071,408
(115,059,483)
(77,988,075)

(53,756,461)
(61,303,022)
(115,059,483)

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents as previously reported		
Effect of Exchange Rate changes		
Cash & Cash Equivalent as Restated		

(69,786,581)
(174,672)
(69,961,253)

(105,165,977)
(490,730)
(105,656,707)

(77,988,075)
(77,988,075)

(115,059,483)
(115,059,483)

Favourable Balances
Cash in Hand and at Bank		

16,858,570

10,796,519

8,831,748

1,393,743

Unfavourable Balances
Bank Overdrafts		
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents		

(86,819,823)
(69,961,253)

(116,453,226)
(105,656,707)

(86,819,823)
(77,988,075)

(116,453,226)
(115,059,483)

180,643,717

95,551,851

180,363,661

10,489,157

(4,026,512)
7,560,071
12,404,473
5,677,145
(3,538,285)
232,652
198,953,261

(1,071,184)
14,657,204
15,084,181
8,357,683
(806,482)
1,788,619
302,275
(210,453)
133,653,694

(3,689,104)
7,560,071
12,404,473
5,677,145
(3,538,285)
232,652
199,010,613

(330,338)
14,657,204
14,088,550
8,357,683
(70,000)
120,755,190
302,275
168,249,721

Cash Flows from / (Used In) Operating Activities
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

A) Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Profit Before Tax		
Adjustments for:
Finance Expenses		
Interest Paid		
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations		
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Provision for fall in value of Investments		
Bad and Doubtful Debts		
Exchange Gain		
		

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on pages 56 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 31 March

Stated Revaluation
General
Dividend
Capital
Reserve
Reserve
Reserve
					
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Group
As at 01 April 2010
Deferred Tax Rate change impact
on Revaluation
Currency Translation Difference
Net Profit for the year
As at 31 March 2011
Net Profit for the year
Currency Translation Difference
As at 31 March 2012
Company
As at 01 April 2010
Deferred Tax Rate change impact
on Revaluation
Net Loss for the year
As at 31 March 2011
Net Profit for the year
As at 31 March 2012

Exchange
Translation
Reserve
Rs.

Total
Equity

Rs.

Rs.

274,815,000

92,803,095

20,305,176

133,875

(3,828,609)

274,815,000
274,815,000

1,850,767
94,653,862
94,653,862

20,305,176
20,305,176

133,875
133,875

1,850,767
1,181,657
1,181,657
30,363,071
30,363,071
(2,646,952) (64,298,213) 322,962,748
- 129,638,664 129,638,664
(174,672)
(174,672)
(2,821,624) 65,340,451 452,426,740

274,815,000

92,803,095

20,305,176

133,875

-

(15,127,189) 372,929,957

274,815,000
274,815,000

1,850,767
94,653,862
94,653,862

20,305,176
20,305,176

133,875
133,875

-

1,850,767
(54,699,623) (54,699,623)
(69,826,812) 320,081,101
129,358,608 129,358,608
59,531,796 449,439,709

The Accounting Policies and Notes set out on pages 56 to 77 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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(94,661,284) 289,567,253

Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Keells Food Products PLC (PQ3) is a Public Limited Liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka, and is listed on the
Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is at the office of Keells Consultants Ltd, located at No. 130, Glennie
Street, Colombo 2, and the principal place of business is situated at No. 16, Minuwangoda Road, Ekala, Ja-Ela.
The Issued ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.
Principal Activities and Nature of Operations
Company
During the year, the principal activities of the Company were manufacture and sale of processed meats, crumbed products and raw
meats.
Subsidiary
The principal activity of John Keells Foods India Private Limited is marketing of processed meat products.
Keells Food Products Mauritius Pvt. Limited is an Investment Company which was removed from the registrar of Companies in
Mauritius in terms of the Mauritius Companies Act with effect from 26th of April 2011.
In the report of the Directors and in the Financial Statements “the Company” refers to Keells Food Products PLC. “The Group” refers
to the Companies whose accounts have been consolidated therein. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2012 were authorized for issue by the Directors on the 25 May 2012.
The Company’s ultimate parent and controlling entity is John Keells Holdings PLC, which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.
1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention unless
stated otherwise.
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency
and all financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee.
The significant accounting policies are discussed in note 1.4 below.
Statement of compliance
The Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement, together with the Accounting
Policies and Notes (the “Financial Statements”) have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the requirement of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.
Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary as at 31st March 2012.
The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary is prepared in compliance with the group’s Accounting Policies unless otherwise stated.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition or incorporation, being the date on which the group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent Company, which is 12 months
ending 31 March, using consistent Accounting Policies.
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Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the parent. Control exists when the parent holds more than 50% of the voting rights
or otherwise has a controlling interest.
The following Company has been consolidated under section 152 of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, where the Company controls
the composition of the Board of Directors of this Company.
John Keells Foods India Private Limited

100%

John Keells Foods India Private Limited was incorporated in India on the 7th of April 2008.
The total profits and losses for the year of the Company and of John Keells Foods India Private Limited are included in consolidation
and all assets and liabilities of the Company and of its Subsidiary are included in consolidation are shown in the consolidated Income
Statement and Balance Sheet respectively.
The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement includes the cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiary.
1.3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting Policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.
Comparative information
Previous year’s figures and phrases have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year’s presentation.
1.3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Financial Statements of the Group require the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions,
which may affect the amounts of income, expenditure, assets , liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. In the process of applying the Group’s Accounting Policies, the key assumptions made relating to the future and
the sources of estimation at the reporting date together with the related judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
The Group measures land and buildings at revalued amounts with changes in fair value being recognized in the statement of equity.
The Group engages independent valuation specialists to determine fair value of land and buildings in intervals of 5 years. The valuer
has used valuation techniques such as market values and discounted cash flow methods where there was lack of comparable market
data available based on the nature of the property.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use (VIU). The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from
an active market, in an arm’s length transaction, of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for
the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the
discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. Accordingly, based on such reasonable estimates the Group establishes
the provisions to be made during the financial year.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 1.4.2 and Note 21.
Employee Benefit Liability
The employee benefit liability of the Group is based on the actuarial valuation carried out by Messrs. Actuarial & Management
Consultants (Pvt) Ltd., actuaries. The actuarial valuations involve making assumptions about discount rates and future salary increases.
The complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation are highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Details of the key assumptions used in the
estimates are contained in Note 12.
1.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.4.1 Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
The Group’s Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lanka rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities of the Group operates.
All foreign exchange transactions are converted to functional currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions
are effected.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are retranslated to functional currency equivalents at the exchange
rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined. The resulting gains and losses are accounted for in the income statement.
Balance Sheet

Income Statement
Average Rate

Indian Rupee

2011/12

2010/11

2011/12

2010/11

2.49

2.52

2.36

2.47

1.4.2 Tax
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the Balance Sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and unused tax credits and tax losses carried forward, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the unused
tax credits and tax losses carried forward can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each Balance Sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or liability
is settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.
Income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the Income Statement.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:
•

where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the
sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

•

Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the Balance Sheet.
1.4.3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.
Land and buildings are measured at fair value less depreciation on buildings and impairment charged subsequent to the date of the
revaluation.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Where land and buildings are subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued at fair value on the date of revaluation.
The Group has adopted a policy of revaluing assets every 5 years.
When an asset is revalued, any increase in the carrying amount is credited directly to a revaluation reserve included in the equity
section of the Balance Sheet, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the Income Statement, in which case the increase is recognised in the Income Statement. Any revaluation deficit that offsets a
previous surplus in the same asset is directly offset against the surplus in the revaluation reserve and any excess recognised as an
expense. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.
Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon replacement, disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Income Statement in the year the asset
is derecognised.

59

| Keells Food Products PLC (PQ3) Annual Report 2011/2012

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated by using a straight-line method on the cost or valuation of all property, plant and equipment, other than
freehold land, in order to write off such amounts over the estimated useful economic life of such assets.
The estimated useful life of assets is as follows:
Assets
Buildings on Freehold Land
Buildings on Leasehold Land
Plant and Machinery
Equipment, Furniture and Fittings

Years
50
10
10 - 15
5-8

Motor Vehicles

5

Freezers

6

Other Equipment

2

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.
1.4.4 Operating leases
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership over the term of the lease, are
classified as operating leases.
Lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
1.4.5 Impairment of assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement, except that, impairment losses in respect of property, plant and equipment
are recognised against the revaluation reserve to the extent that it reverses a previous revaluation surplus.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Income Statement unless the asset is carried
at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.
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1.4.6 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition, are accounted for as follows:
Raw Materials

-

Actual cost on a weighted average basis

Manufactured Finished goods

-

At the actual cost of direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of fixed
overheads.

Work-in-progress

-

At the cost of direct materials (excluding packing materials) and an appropriate portion of
direct labour and fixed production overheads based on percentage completed.

Finished Goods Purchased

-

At actual cost on weighted average basis.

Spares

-

At actual cost on weighted average basis.

Other Inventories

-

At actual cost

1.4.7 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realise, net of provisions for bad and doubtful
receivables.
A provision for doubtful debts is made when the debt exceeds 180 days, and collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off when identified.
1.4.8 Short-term investments
Treasury bills and other interest-bearing securities held for resale in the near future to benefit from short-term market movements are
accounted for at cost plus the relevant proportion of the discounts or premiums.
1.4.9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with a maturity
of 3 months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
1.4.10 Defined benefit plan - gratuity
The liability recognised in the Balance Sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses arising are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.
1.4.11 Defined contribution plan - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund
Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund contributions in line with respective
statutes and regulations. The Group contributes the defined percentages of gross emoluments of employees to an approved
Employees’ Provident Fund and to the Employees’ Trust Fund respectively, which are externally funded.
1.4.12 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the Income Statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the Financial Statements unless the outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are disclosed, where inflow of economic benefit is probable.
1.4.13 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, and the revenue and
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and value added taxes.
The following specific criteria are used for recognition of revenue:
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the
buyer with the Group retaining neither a continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor an
effective control over the goods sold.
Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion.
Turnover based taxes
Turnover based taxes include Value Added Tax, Turnover Tax and Nation Building Tax. Group pays such taxes in accordance with
the respective statutes.
Dividend
Dividend income is recognised on a cash basis.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised as interest accrues.
Gains and losses
Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets,
including investments, are accounted for in the Income Statement, after deducting from the proceeds on disposal, the carrying
amount of such assets and the related selling expenses.
Gains and losses arising from activities incidental to the main revenue generating activities and those arising from a group of similar
transactions, which are not material are aggregated, reported and presented on a net basis.
Other income
Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.
1.4.14 Expenditure recognition
Expenses are recognised in the Income Statement on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earning of
specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment
in a state of efficiency has been charged to the Income Statement.
For the purpose of presentation of the Income Statement, the “function of expenses” method has been adopted, on the basis that it
presents fairly the elements of the Group’s performance.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, unless they are incurred in respect of
qualifying assets in which case it is capitalised.
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1.5 SRI LANKA ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (SLAS) EFFECTIVE FROM 01 JANUARY 2012
The Group will be adopting the new Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (new SLAS) comprising LKAS and SLFRS applicable for
financial periods commencing from 01 January 2012 as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The Group has
commenced reviewing its Accounting Policies and financial reporting in readiness for the transition. As the Group has a 31 March
year end, priority has been given to considering the preparation of an opening Balance Sheet in accordance with the new SLASs as
at 01 April 2011. This will form the basis of accounting for the new SLASs in the future, and is required when the Group prepares its
first new SLAS compliant Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2012. Set out below are the key areas where accounting
policies will change and may have an impact on the Financial Statements of the Group.
(a) SLFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards requires the Group to prepare and present opening new SLFRS
Financial Statements at the date of transition to new SLAS. The Group shall use the same Accounting Policies in its opening new
SLAS Financial Statements and throughout all comparable periods presented in its first new SLAS Financial Statements.
(b) LKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements requires an entity to present, in a Statement of Changes in Equity, all owner
changes in equity. All non owner changes in equity are required to be presented in one Statement of Comprehensive Income
or in two statements (a separate Income Statement and a Statement of Comprehensive Income). This standard also requires
the Group to disclose information that enables users of its Financial Statements to evaluate the entity’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing capital.
(c) LKAS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment requires a Group to initially measure an item of property plant and equipment at cost,
using the cash price equivalent at the recognition date. If payment is deferred beyond normal credit terms, the difference between
the cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognized as interest over the period, unless such interest is capitalized in
accordance with LKAS 23 Borrowing Costs.
This standard requires depreciation of assets over their useful lives, where the residual value of assets is deducted to arrive at
the depreciable value. It also requires that significant components of an asset be evaluated separately for depreciation.
(d) LKAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, LKAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and SLFRS 7 Disclosures will result in changes to the current method of recognising financial assets,
Financial liabilities and equity instruments. These standards will require measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value at initial measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets classified as fair value through profit and loss
and available for sale will be at fair value, with the gains and losses routed through the Statements of Comprehensive Income
and Other Comprehensive Income respectively.
Financial assets classified as held to maturity and loans and receivables will be measured subsequently at amortized cost. These
assets will need to be assessed for any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) coupled with a reliable estimate of the loss event (or events) impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets. As such the current method of assessing for impairment will
have to be changed to meet the requirements of these new standards.
Financial liabilities will be either classified as fair value through profit or loss or at amortized cost. At present, the group does
not identify, categorise and measure financial assets and liabilities as per the requirements of the standard and also does not
recognize certain derivative instruments on the Balance Sheet.
(e)

LKAS 12 – Income Tax requires deferred tax to be provided in respect of temporary differences which will arise as a result of
adjustments made to comply with the new SLAS.

(f)

LKAS 18 – Revenue requires the Group to measure revenue at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. It also
specifies recognition criteria for revenue, and the Group needs to apply such recognition criteria to the separately identifiable
components of a single transaction in order to reflect the substance of the transaction.
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The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has resolved an amendment to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 10, whereby the
provision contained in paragraphs 30 and 31 of SLAS 10 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, would
not be applicable for Financial Statements prepared in respect of financial periods commencing before 1 January 2012 and hence
the impact of this transition is not required to be disclosed in these Financial Statements.

1.6 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Reporting segments
The Group’s internal organisation and management is structured based on individual products and services which are similar in
nature and process and where the risk and return are similar. The primary segments represent this business structure.
The secondary segments are determined based on the Company’s geographical spread of operations. The geographical analysis of
turnover and profits are based on location of customers and assets respectively.
The activities of each of the reported business segments of the Group is detailed in Note 16.
Segment information
Segment information has been prepared in conformity with the Accounting Policies adopted for preparing and presenting the Financial
Statements of the Group.
1.7 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
All material and post Balance Sheet events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments or disclosures have been
made in respective notes to the Financial Statements.
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Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2012
As at 31 March 2011

120,489,338
119,695,797

(4,073,508)
(91,279)
(4,164,787)

123,769,305
884,820
124,654,125

2.2 Company
Cost or Valuation
As at 1 April 2011
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
As at 31 March 2012

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals
As at 31 March 2012

120,489,338
119,695,797

(4,073,508)
(91,279)
(4,164,787)

123,769,305
884,820
124,654,125

Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2012
As at 31 March 2011

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment
As at 31 March 2012

2.1 Group
Cost or Valuation
As at 1 April 2011
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
As at 31 March 2012
194,229,549
13,812,139
(422,830)
207,618,858

194,156,550
13,812,139
(349,831)
207,618,858

43,922,935
36,289,776

2,864,155
4,661,638

43,922,935
36,289,776

(1,538,362) (157,866,774)
(1,797,483)
(6,178,980)
349,831
(3,335,845) (163,695,923)

6,200,000
6,200,000

2,864,155
4,661,638

(1,538,362) (157,939,773)
(1,797,483)
(6,178,980)
422,830
(3,335,845) (163,695,923)

6,200,000
6,200,000

Buildings on
Plant and
Leasehold
Machinery
Land		
Rs.
Rs.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
		
Buildings
			
Year ended 31 March
Rs.

2

5,452,505
4,599,300

(35,301,038)
(1,516,195)
5,681,356
(31,135,877)

39,900,338
2,369,400
(5,681,356)
36,588,382

5,452,505
4,599,300

(39,239,580)
(1,516,195)
9,619,898
(31,135,877)

43,838,880
2,369,400
(9,619,898)
36,588,382

-

(3,024,167)
2,350,001
(674,166)

3,024,167
(2,350,001)
674,166

-

(3,024,167)
2,350,001
(674,166)

3,024,167
(2,350,001)
674,166

7,247,976
7,296,854

(34,414,061)
(2,064,878)
16,676,935
(19,802,004)

41,710,915
2,016,000
(16,676,935)
27,049,980

7,247,976
7,296,854

(36,946,755)
(2,064,878)
19,209,629
(19,802,004)

44,243,609
2,016,000
(19,209,629)
27,049,980

975,876
994,364

(11,061,425)
(755,658)
2,325,797
(9,491,286)

12,055,789
639,670
(2,325,797)
97,500
10,467,162

975,876
994,364

(13,962,320)
(755,658)
5,226,693
(9,491,285)

14,956,684
639,670
(5,226,693)
97,500
10,467,161

8,282,749
97,500

-

97,500
8,282,749
(97,500)
8,282,749

8,282,749
97,500

-

97,500
8,282,749
(97,500)
8,282,749

437,528,626
14,503,053
(21,671,985)
430,359,694

Rs.

Total
2011

428,083,496
14,503,053
(21,671,985)
420,914,564

173,635,229

189,235,534
-

173,635,229

(247,279,335) (254,862,770)
(12,404,473) (14,088,550)
27,383,920
21,671,985
(232,299,888) (247,279,335)

420,914,564
28,004,778
(27,383,920)
421,535,422

189,235,534
-

(256,724,465) (261,523,650)
(12,404,473) (15,084,181)
36,829,051
21,671,985
(1,788,619)
(232,299,887) (256,724,465)

430,359,694
28,004,778
(36,829,051)
421,535,421

Furniture,
Motor
Freezers
Other
Capital
Total
Fittings and
Vehicles		
Assets
WIP
2012
Equipment						
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs.
Rs

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2.3 Carrying Value
At Cost		
69,908,226
At Valuation		
119,327,308
		 189,235,534

52,510,437
121,124,792
173,635,229

69,908,226
119,327,308
189,235,534

52,510,437
121,124,792
173,635,229

2.4 Land and Building
At Valuation		
119,327,308
Net Book Value		 119,327,308

121,124,792
121,124,792

119,327,308
119,327,308

121,124,792
121,124,792

Details of Land and Buildings stated at valuation are indicated below;
		
Property
Method of
valuation

Effective		
date of
Independent
valuation
Valuer

Land and Buildings of Keells Food
Open Market Value Method
31 March 2008
Products PLC			

Messrs. P.B. Kalugalagedera,
Chartered Valuation Surveyor

The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to the revaluation reserve.
2.5 The carrying amount of Revalued Land and Building if they were carried at cost less depreciation, would be as follows;
Group
As at 31 March 		
		
Cost		
Accumulated Depreciation		
Carrying Value		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

28,461,000
(23,562,691)
4,898,309

28,461,000
(22,496,531)
5,964,469

28,461,000
(23,562,691)
4,898,309

28,461,000
(22,496,531)
5,964,469

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost of Rs.191,600,836/- (2010/11 - Rs. 195,773,548) have been fully depreciated and
continue to be in use by the Company and the Group.
2.7 During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired Property, Plant & Equipment to the aggregate value of
Rs.28,004,778/- (2010/11 - Rs.14,503,053/-). Cash payments amounting to Rs. 28,004,778/- (2010/11 - Rs.14,503,053/-) were
made during the year for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment.
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Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Unquoted Investments
John Keells Foods India Private Limited (JKFI)		
Keells Food Products Mauritius Private Limited (KFPM)		
		

-

-

220,291,730
220,291,730

220,291,730
1,028,038
221,319,768

Less
Allowance for Impairment of Investments - JKFI
(3.1)
Allowance for Impairment of Investments - KFPM
(3.2)
		

-

-

(214,159,354)
6,132,376

(214,159,354)
(1,028,038)
6,132,376

3

Investment in Subsidiaries

3.1 The Subsidiary Company John Keells Foods India Private Limited was restructured in June 2010 due to the significant losses
incurred. Despite efforts made by John Keells Foods India Private Limited to appoint a master distributor who could carry out
sales on their behalf, the Company was unable to agree terms which were beneficial to both parties. Therefore Keells Food
Products PLC began exporting directly to India. In the above context it was considered prudent and appropriate to impair the
investment in John keells Foods India Private Limited. The amount of Rs. 214,159,354/- was impaired of which Rs. 119,727,152/was made in 2010/2011 and Rs. 94,432,202/- was made in 2009/10.
3.2 Keells Food Products Mauritius Private Limited was removed from the register of the Registrar of Companies in Mauritius, in
terms of the Mauritius Companies Act with effect from 26 April 2011, pursuant to an application made by the Company in this
regard. Therefore the investment has been fully written off during the year.

Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

At the beginning of the year		
Loans Granted		
Loans Recovered		
At the end of the year		

25,457,764
33,848,629
(15,310,651)
43,995,742

18,282,281
17,824,308
(10,648,825)
25,457,764

25,457,764
33,848,629
(15,310,651)
43,995,742

18,282,281
17,824,308
(10,648,825)
25,457,764

4.1 Loans to Staff - Non current		
4.2 Loans to Staff - Current		
			

33,959,019
10,036,723
43,995,742

18,635,999
6,821,765
25,457,764

33,959,019
10,036,723
43,995,742

18,635,999
6,821,765
25,457,764

Raw Materials		
146,410,922
Work-in-Progress		
9,385,692
Finished Goods		
120,353,895
Spare Parts		
15,139,430
Other Inventories		
259,352
		 291,549,291

157,238,409
19,828,485
106,084,633
15,163,415
233,275
298,548,217

146,410,922
9,385,692
120,353,895
15,139,430
259,352
291,549,291

157,238,409
19,828,485
106,084,633
15,163,415
233,275
298,548,217

4
Other Non current Assets
Loans to Staff

5
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Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

222,077,059

209,326,699

218,041,264

206,857,207

Less
Provision for bad debts		
(4,047,899)
		
218,029,160
Loans to Staff - Current (Note 4.2)		
10,036,723
		 228,065,883

(3,979,299)
205,347,400
6,821,765
212,169,165

(4,047,899)
213,993,365
10,036,723
224,030,088

(3,979,299)
202,877,908
6,821,765
209,699,673

6

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and Other Receivables		

An amount of Rs. 232,652/- has been charged to the Income Statement during the year as specific bad debt provision, whilst a
specific provision of Rs. 164,054/- provided in the previous year was written off against debtors.

Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

7,236,621

8,957,384

-

-

Cash in Hand		
Cash at Bank		
		
Favourable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balance		

783,500
8,838,449
9,621,949
16,858,570

814,500
1,024,636
1,839,136
10,796,520

783,500
8,048,248
8,831,748
8,831,748

814,500
579,243
1,393,743
1,393,743

Bank Overdraft		
Unfavourable Cash & Cash Equivalent Balances		

86,819,823
86,819,823

116,453,226
116,453,226

86,819,823
86,819,823

116,453,226
116,453,226

7

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Call Deposits		

Security and Repayment Terms of Borrowings
Type of
Facility

Lending
Institution

Nature of
Facility

Facility
Security
Amount		

Repayment
Terms

Short Term
HSBC
Bank Overdraft
Rs. 50,000,000/				
				
				

A letter of Negative
Pledge over
Company’s
Unencumbered Assets

On Demand

Short Term

Deutsche Bank

Bank Overdraft

Rs. 40,000,000/-

Clean Basis

On Demand

Short Term

NTB

Bank Overdraft

Rs. 100,000,000/-

Clean Basis

On Demand

Short Term

BOC

Bank Overdraft

Rs. 1,000,000/-

Corporate Guarantee

On Demand

Short Term

DFCC

Bank Overdraft

Rs. 50,000,000/-

Clean Basis

On Demand
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Group
As at 31 March

8

Number
of Shares

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

274,815,000

274,815,000

274,815,000

274,815,000

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

94,653,862
94,653,862

92,803,095
1,850,767
94,653,862

94,653,862
94,653,862

92,803,095
1,850,767
94,653,862

Stated Capital

Issued and Fully paid Capital

8,500,000

Group
As at 31 March		
		

9

Company

Capital Reserves

Revaluation Reserve
Note 9.1
At the begining of the year		
Deferred Tax Rate change impact on Revaluation		
At the end of the year		

9.1 Revaluation reserve consists of the net surplus on the Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment net of deferred tax effect.
Group
As at 31 March		
		

10

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

20,305,176
133,875
(2,821,624)
17,617,427
65,340,451
82,957,878

20,305,176
133,875
(2,646,952)
17,792,099
(64,298,213)
(46,506,114)

20,305,176
133,875
20,439,051
59,531,796
79,970,847

20,305,176
133,875
20,439,051
(69,826,812)
(49,387,761)

Revenue Reserves

General Reserve
Note 10.1
Dividend Reserve
Note 10.2
Exchange Translation Reserve
Note 10.3
		
Retained Earnings/ (Loss)		
		

10.1 General Reserve represents amounts set aside by the Directors for general application.
10.2 Dividend Reserve represents amounts available for Dividend payments.
10.3 Exchange Translation Reserve consist of currency translation differences from the Foreign Subsidiary.
Group
As at 31 March 2012 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

At the beginning of the year		
Charge / (Release)		
Transfer to revaluation reserve		
At the end of the year		

2,779,880
121,354
2,901,234

6,440,400
(1,809,753)
(1,850,767)
2,779,880

2,779,880
121,354
2,901,234

6,440,400
(1,809,753)
(1,850,767)
2,779,880

The closing Deferred Tax Liability balance relates to the following;
Accelerated Capital Allowances for Tax purposes		
Employee Benefit Liabilities		
		

17,996,533
(15,095,299)
2,901,234

16,961,388
(14,181,508)
2,779,880

17,996,533
(15,095,299)
2,901,234

16,961,388
(14,181,508)
2,779,880

11
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Group
As at 31 March 		
		

12

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

50,648,242
5,256,917
224,503
5,064,824
(1,610,548)
(4,644,596)
54,939,342

45,456,371
3,844,345
828,615
4,545,637
(3,994,427)
(32,299)
50,648,242

50,648,242
5,256,917
224,503
5,064,824
(1,610,548)
(4,644,596)
54,939,342

45,456,371
3,844,345
828,615
4,545,637
(3,994,427)
(32,299)
50,648,242

Employee Benefit Liabilities

At the beginning of the year		
Charge		
Transfers		
Interest cost		
Payments		
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss		
At the end of the year		

Messrs. Actuarial and Management Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.; Independent actuaries, carried out an actuarial valuation of the defined
benefit plan - gratuity. Appropriate and compatible assumptions were used in determining the cost of retirement benefits.
The principal assumptions used in determining the cost of employee benefits were;
Financial Assumptions
Rate of Discount
Long Term Salary Increment Rate

10% p.a
6% - 10% p.a

Retirement Age
Clerical and Labour Staff
Sales Representatives
Executive Staff

55 Years
55 Years
55 Years

The liability to the above Employee Benefits is not externally funded.
The expense of the employee benefit liability charged for the year is reflected in the following expense category in the Income
Statement;
Group
Company
For the Year ended 31 March 		
		
Cost of Sales		
Distribution Expenses		
Administration		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

(1,048,043)
3,786,510
2,938,680
5,677,147

6,439,676
2,084,463
(166,456)
8,357,683

(1,048,043)
3,786,510
2,938,678
5,677,145

6,439,676
2,084,463
(166,456)
8,357,683

Group
As at 31 March 		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Trade Payables		
137,851,386
Sundry Creditors including Accrued Expenses		
64,010,923
Other Payables		
7,001,248
		 208,863,557

104,699,827
51,798,788
13,093,663
169,592,278

136,288,986
62,718,824
6,912,537
205,920,347

105,046,787
49,190,932
12,496,313
166,734,032

13
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Group
As at 31 March		
		

14

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

25,330,329
51,503,041
(619,342)
(70,709,857)
5,504,171

64,718,533
2,280,000
(18,300,083)
(23,368,121)
25,330,329

25,330,329
51,503,041
(619,342)
(70,709,857)
5,504,171

64,718,533
2,280,000
(18,300,083)
(23,368,121)
25,330,329

81,902,185
(81,902,185)
-

45,000,000
36,902,185
81,902,185

81,902,185
(81,902,185)
-

45,000,000
36,902,185
81,902,185

Income Tax Liabilities

At the beginning of the year		
Provision for the year		
Income Tax - Under /(Over) provision		
Payments During the Year		
Set off against Refunds		
At the end of the year		

15

Company

Short Term Borrowings - Related Parties

At the beginning of the year		
Loans Received		
Loans Settled		
At the end of the year		

The above loans were obtained to finance the general working capital requirements of the Company. The loans were obtained on a
3-6 months tenor and rolled over. Average interest rate on the loan was 8.15%. (2010/11 - 8.5%).

16

Revenue

16.1 Net Revenue
Group

Company

For the Year ended 31 March 		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Net Revenue		

2,328,751,844

2,196,156,376

2,328,751,844

2,162,880,267

Value Added Tax of Rs.237,974,280/- (2010/11 - Rs.207,085,159/-) has been deducted in arriving at the Revenue of the Company.
The revenue related taxes for the Group amounted to Rs.237,974,280/- (2010/11 - Rs. 208,420,126/-).
16.2 Business Segment Analysis
16.2.1 Business Segment Analysis - Group
Group
For the Year ended 31 March

2012
Rs.
Manufacturing

2011
Rs.
Manufacturing

2012
Rs
Trading

2011
Rs.
Trading

2012
Rs.
Total

2011
Rs.
Total

Revenue
2,182,803,833 2,093,246,766
145,948,011
102,909,610 2,328,751,844 2,196,156,376
Segment Results
546,382,002
498,689,572
15,415,186
31,393,431
561,797,188
530,083,003
Other Operating Income					
13,499,672
8,883,337
Distribution Expenses					 (248,273,214)
(252,615,245)
Administrative Expenses					
(96,254,575)
(104,849,934)
Other Operating Expenses					
(42,565,283)
(71,292,106)
Finance Expenses					
(7,560,071)
(14,657,204)
Profit for the year					
180,643,717
95,551,851
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16.2.2		Business Segment Analysis - Company
			
For the Year ended 31 March

Company

2012
2011
Rs.
Rs.
Manufacturing Manufacturing

2012
Rs
Trading

2011
Rs.
Trading

2012
Rs.
Total

2011
Rs.
Total

Revenue
2,182,803,833 2,093,246,766
145,948,011
69,633,501 2,328,751,844 2,162,880,267
Segment Results
546,382,002
498,689,572
15,415,186
13,607,357
561,797,188
512,296,929
Other Operating Income					
10,826,938
22,427,416
Distribution Expenses					 (248,311,977) (238,116,685)
Administrative Expenses					 (94,077,150)
(87,255,765)
Impairment of Foreign Investment					
- (120,755,190)
Other Operating Expenses					 (42,311,267)
(63,450,344)
Finance Expenses					
(7,560,071)
(14,657,204)
Profit for the year					 180,363,661
10,489,157
All Inter Company Revenues, Other Income and Expenses have been eliminated on Consolidation.
16.3 Geographical Segment Analysis of Revenue (By Location of Customers)
Group
For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs

2011
Rs.

Sri Lanka		 2,282,723,334
Asia (Excluding Sri Lanka)		
46,028,510
		2,328,751,844

2,120,779,996
75,376,380
2,196,156,376

2,282,723,334
46,028,510
2,328,751,844

2,120,779,996
42,100,271
2,162,880,267

1,071,184
821,809
806,482
5,843,939
339,923
8,883,337

3,689,104
204,039
3,538,285
3,395,510
10,826,938

330,338
70,000
3,203,758
18,483,397
339,923
22,427,416

17

Other Operating Income

Interest Income		
Exchange Gain		
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Royalty Income		
Other Income		
Recovery of Bad Debts		
Unclaimed Dividend Over 6 Years written back		
		

4,026,512
204,039
3,538,285
2,335,326
3,395,510
13,499,672

Group
For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

18

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs

2011
Rs.

36,256,351
6,308,932
42,565,283

48,314,013
22,978,093
71,292,106

36,256,351
6,054,916
42,311,267

48,314,013
15,136,331
63,450,344

7,560,071

14,657,204

7,560,071

14,657,204

Finance Expenses

Short Term		

72

2012
Rs.

Other Operating Expenses

Nation Building Tax		
Other Expenses		
		

19
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20

Profit Before Tax

Profit Before Income Tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following;
Group

Company

For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Remuneration to Non Executive Directors		
Auditors Fees and Expenses - Audit Services		
- Non Audit Services		

5,600,000
672,193
72,750

4,421,800
2,049,091
116,074

5,600,000
473,316
72,750

4,200,000
438,256
26,750

Cost of Defined Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit Plan Cost -Gratuity		
Defined Contribution Plan Cost - EPF and ETF		
Staff Expenses		
Depreciation		
Bad Debts and Doubtful Debts - Trade		
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Donations		

5,677,145
26,883,729
275,141,321
12,404,473
232,653
722,000

8,357,683
24,384,654
253,169,891
15,084,181
302,275
1,788,619
729,700

5,677,145
26,883,729
275,141,321
12,404,473
232,653
722,000

8,357,683
23,929,766
241,267,744
14,088,551
302,275
729,700

51,503,041
(619,342)
121,354
51,005,053

64,718,533
2,280,000
(1,809,753)
65,188,780

51,503,041
(619,342)
121,354
51,005,053

64,718,533
2,280,000
(1,809,753)
65,188,780

21

Income Tax Expense

Income Tax		
Income Tax - Under /(Over) provision		
Deferred Tax Charge / (Reversal)
Note 21.2
Note 21.1

Applicable Rates of Income Tax and Social Responsibility Levy
The Tax Liability of the Company is Computed at the Standard Rate of 28% (2010/11 - 35%) and for Qualified exports at the rate of
12% (2010/11-15%).
Social Responsibility Levy has been abolished effective 1 January 2011 (2010/11 -1.5%).
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21.1 Reconciliation between Income Tax Expense and the Product of Accounting Profit
Group

Company

For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Profit Before Tax		
Consolidation Adjustments		
Aggregate Accounting Profit		
Profit not charged to income tax		
Accounting Profit Liable to Income Tax		

173,848,553
6,795,164
180,643,717
180,643,717

95,551,851
(84,241,425)
11,310,426
(1,455,325)
9,855,101

180,363,661
180,363,661
180,363,661

10,489,157
10,489,157
10,489,157

Income Tax on Accounting Profit at applicable rates		
Under / (Over) provision		
Aggregate Disallowable Deductions		
Tax Effect on Deductions Claimed		
Net Tax Effect of Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets		
Qualifying Payment Relief		
Social Responsibility Levy		
Total Income Tax Expense		

50,573,222
(619,342)
1,051,173
51,005,053

3,510,752
2,280,000
61,657,538
(3,179,991)
137,000
(172,950)
956,431
65,188,780

50,573,222
(619,342)
1,051,173
51,005,053

3,510,752
2,280,000
58,614,547
(172,950)
956,431
65,188,780

Income tax charged at
Standard Rate - CSE Listed Companies 28% (2010/11-35%)
Concessionary Rate of 12% (2010/11-15%)		
		
Social Responsibility Levy		
		

50,781,570
721,471
51,503,041
51,503,041

63,197,069
565,033
63,762,102
956,431
64,718,533

50,781,570
721,471
51,503,041
51,503,041

63,197,069
565,033
63,762,102
956,431
64,718,533

Deferred Tax Charge / ( Reversal)
Note 21.2
Income Tax Under / (Over) Provision		
Total Income Tax Expense		

121,354
(619,342)
51,005,053

(1,809,753)
2,280,000
65,188,780

121,354
(619,342)
51,005,053

(1,809,753)
2,280,000
65,188,780

21.2 Deferred Tax Expense
Deferred tax arising from
Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purposes		
Post Employment Benefits		
Total Deferred Tax Reversal		

1,035,145
(913,791)
121,354

(2,793,677)
983,924
(1,809,753)

1,035,145
(913,791)
121,354

(2,793,677)
983,924
(1,809,753)

The Subsidiary has carried forward tax losses amounting to Rs.240,529,544/- (2010/11- Rs.239,050,969/-). Deferred Income Tax
Asset arising from the carried forward losses has not been recognised in the Subsidiary Company’s Financial Statements as it is
not probable that taxable profits will be available in the foreseeable future against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.
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Group

As at 31 March				
				

2012
Rs

2011
Rs

22.1 Basic Earnings Per Share
Profit attributable to Ordinary Equity holders				
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares				

129,638,664
8,500,000

30,363,071
8,500,000

Basic Earnings per Share				

15.25

3.57

22.2 Amount used as Denominator
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares				

8,500,000

8,500,000

22

Earnings per Share

Group
As at 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

Company
2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

-		
59,144,063
64,675,298
59,144,063
64,675,298

59,144,063
59,144,063

64,166,728
(64,166,728)
64,675,298
64,675,298

2,238,051
6,553,489
8,791,540

2,215,615
5,141,878
7,357,493

2,238,051
6,553,489
8,791,540

23. Related Party Disclosures
23.1 Amounts due from Related Parties
Ultimate Parent		
Subsidiary		
Provision for bad debts		
Companies under Common Control		
Note 23.8
23.2 Amounts due to Related Parties
Ultimate Parent		
Subsidiary		
Companies under Common Control		
Note 23.9

2,215,615
5,141,878
7,357,493
Group

Company

For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

23.3 Transactions with Related Parties
Ultimate Parent
Receiving of services		
Interest paid		

(16,877,998)
(2,410,124)

(14,548,343)
(6,317,978)

(16,877,998)
(2,410,124)

(14,548,343)
(6,317,978)

Subsidiary
Investment		
Sale of goods		

-

-

-

(36,859,528)
33,448,793

Companies under Common Control
Sale of goods		
Payments for goods / services received		

508,533,043
(29,109,790)

463,724,346
(39,152,542)

508,533,043
(29,109,790)

463,551,348
(38,687,499)

Companies controlled / jointly controlled / significantly
influenced by Key Management Personnel		

-

-

-

-
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23.4 Post Employment Benefit Plan
Group
For the Year Ended 31 March		
		

Company

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Contribution to Provident Funds		

4,323,463

3,683,233

4,323,463

3,683,233

23.5 Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Short Term Employee Benefits		

5,600,000

4,421,800

5,600,000

4,200,000

Key Management Personnel include members of the Board of Directors of Keells Food Products PLC and its Parent Company
John Keells Holding PLC.
23.6 Short Term Borrowings from Related Parties
Receipt of Loan from Parent Company		
Repayment of Loan to Parent Company		

(81,902,185)

36,902,185
-

(81,902,185)

36,902,185
-

23.7 Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties
Transactions with related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of business. Outstanding current account balances at the
year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There are no any other related party transactions other than
the above.
23.8 Amounts Due from Related Parties
Group

Company

As at 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Ultimate Parent
John Keells Holdings PLC		

-

-

-

-

Subsidiary
John Keells Foods India Private Limited		

-

-

-

-

1,895,913
641,530
373,971
55,187,747
276,861
607,826
158,580
1,635
59,144,063

1,794,715
828,615
586,708
319,870
59,667,895
741,611
645,863
81,166
8,855
64,675,298

1,895,913
641,530
373,971
55,187,747
276,861
607,826
158,580
1,635
59,144,063

1,794,715
828,615
586,708
319,870
59,667,895
741,611
645,863
81,166
8,855
64,675,298

Companies Under Common Control
Asian Hotels and Properties PLC		
Keells Hotel Management Services Limited		
Habarana Lodge Limited		
Habarana Walk Inn Limited		
JayKay Marketing Services (Pvt) Limited		
Kandy Walk Inn Limited		
Trans Asia Hotels PLC		
Trinco Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Limited		
John Keells Office Automation (Pvt) Limited		
John Keells PLC		
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23.9 Amounts Due to Related Parties
Group

Company

As at 31 March		
		

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

Ultimate Parent
John Keells Holdings PLC		

2,215,615

2,238,051

2,215,615

2,238,051

Subsidiary
John Keells Foods India Private Limited		

-

-

-

-

2,694,623
50,288
254,591
51,825
24,488
42,168
1,360,996
628,877
34,022
7,357,493

3,123,275
153,197
278,975
57,000
20,601
44,685
1,659,608
640,626
85,231
50,255
31,530
408,506
8,791,540

2,694,623
50,288
254,591
51,825
24,488
42,168
1,360,996
628,877
34,022
7,357,493

3,123,275
153,197
278,975
57,000
20,601
44,685
1,659,608
640,626
85,231
50,255
31,530
408,506
8,791,540

Companies Under Common Control
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC		
DHL Keells (Pvt) Limited		
InfoMate (Pvt) Limited		
JayKay Marketing Services (Pvt) Limited		
John Keells PLC		
Keells Consultants Limited		
John Keells Logistic Lanka (Pvt) Limited		
Keells Hotel Management Services Limited		
Mackinnons American Express Travel (Pvt) Limited		
Trinco Holiday Resort (Pvt ) Limited		
Auxicogent International Lanka (Pvt) Limited		
Union Assurance PLC		
		

24

Commitments and Contingencies

24.1 The Company has constructed a Building on Land obtained on lease, the details of which are stated below
Property
Period of Lease
Rentals
			
New Port Estate, Temple Road,
Renewed for 10 years from
Within 1 year
Ekala, Ja Ela.
1st September 2010
Between 1 - 5 years
		
More than 5 years
			

2012
Rs.

2011
Rs.

217,368
1,086,840
521,683
1,825,891

217,368
1,086,840
739,051
2,043,259

24.2 There were no capital commitments or material contingencies as at the Balance Sheet date.

25

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

As required by section 56(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company satisfies
the Solvency test in accordance with Section 57 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, and has obtained a certificate from the
auditors, prior to approving a first and final dividend of Rs.2/- per share to be paid on the 6th of June 2012.
There have been no material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that require adjustments to or disclosure in Financial
Statements.
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Your Share in Detail
Ordinary Shareholding
Number of ordinary shares - 8,500,000

Distribution of Shareholders
31st March 2012
No. of
Shareholders

Shareholding Range
Less than or equal to 1000
1,001 to
10,000
10,001 to
100,000
100,001 to 1,000,000
Over		 1,000,001
				

829
136
22
7
1
995

Categories of Shareholders

No. of
Shareholders

31st March 2011

No. of
%
No. of
Shares Held		 Shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

%

791
113
19
7
1
931

173,619
388,061
565,693
1,791,320
5,581,307
8,500,000

2.04
4.57
6.66
21.07
65.66
100.00

No. of
%
No. of
Shares Held		 Shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

%

176,182
456,929
504,781
1,780,801
5,581,307
8,500,000

2.07
5.38
5.94
20.95
65.66
100.00

John Keells Holdings PLC & Subsidiaries
Directors & Spouses
Public
Total

10
1
984
995

7,180,063
4,250
1,315,687
8,500,000

84.47
0.05
15.48
100.00

10
1
920
931

7,180,063
4,250
1,315,687
8,500,000

84.47
0.05
15.48
100.00

Srilankan Residents
Non-Residents
Total

980
15
995

8,434,230
65,770
8,500,000

99.23
0.77
100.00

922
9
931

8,451,763
48,237
8,500,000

99.43
0.57
100.00

Shareholders Funds

Market Capitalisation

Rs. Mn.

Rs. Mn.

500

1,400
1,200

400

1,000
300

800

200

600
400

100

200
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2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2012

2011

2010

2009

0
2008

0

Your Share in Detail Contd.
Top 20 Shareholders
As at 31st March

2012

2011

		
		

No. of Shares
Held

% of Issued
Capital

No. of Shares
Held

% of Issued
Capital

John Keells Holdings PLC		
John Keells PLC		
Walkers Tours Limited		
Mackinon & Mackenzie & Co. (Shipping) Limited		
John Keells Logistics Lanka (Pvt) Limited		
Waldock Mackenzie Limited / Mr.L.P. Hapangama		
Mack Air Limited		
Mr.J.B.Hirdaramani		
Waldock Mackenzie Limited/
Mr. Chamil A Damion Kohombanwickramage		
Waldock Mackenzie Limited / Delmage Forsyth and
Company (Shipping) Limited		
Waldock Mackenzie Ltd / Mr. L.H.L.M.P.Haradasa		
Waldock Mackenzie Ltd / Mr. M. Haradasa		
Mr.D.J.M.Blackler		
Finco Holdings (Pvt) Limited		
Mrs. N.H. Abdul Husein		
Sandwave Limited		
Mr. L.H.L.M.P. Haradasa		
Mackinnon Mackenzie & Co.of Ceylon Limited		
L.H.L. Noris De Silva and Sons ( Pvt ) Limited		
Waldock Mackenzie Limited / Lewis Brown & Company Limited		

5,581,307
788,784
380,000
162,500
125,000
110,200
109,597
104,720

65.66
9.28
4.47
1.91
1.47
1.30
1.29
1.23

5,581,307
788,784
380,000
162,500
125,000
84,000
109,597
104,720

65.66
9.28
4.47
1.91
1.47
0.99
1.29
1.23

77,200

0.91

77,200

0.91

43,400
33,400
31,600
30,000
26,600
23,500
21,300
21,200
20,000
19,100
19,000

0.51
0.39
0.37
0.35
0.31
0.28
0.25
0.25
0.24
0.22
0.22

30,100
22,700
26,600
30,000
13,200
20,000
12,500
19,000

0.35
0.27
0.31
0.35
0.16
0.24
0.15
0.22

As at 31st March

2012		

Share Prices - (Rs.)
Beginning of the year
Highest for year
Lowest for year
As at 31st March

2011

150.00		
172.10
(18.04.11 )
72.00
(21.02.12 )
100.00		

Net Asset Per Share
Rs.
60

69.00
175.00
65.00
150.00

Market Price
Rs.
150

50
40

100

30
20

50

10
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2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2012

2011

2010

2009

0
2008

0

(14.02.11)
(23.06.10)

Decade at a Glance
2012
Group
Revenue
Profit / (Loss) from
Operating activities
Finance Expenses
Trading Profit/(Loss)
after Finance Expenses
Income Tax Expenses
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax
What We Owned
Property, Plant & Equipment
Non Current Assets / Goodwill
Inventories
Trade and Other Receivables
Other Current Assets
Total Assets
What We Owed
Stated Capital
Capital Reserves
Revenue Reserves
Total Equity
Non Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings
Trade and Other Payables
including dues from Related Parties
Provision for Taxation
& Government - Levies
Total Equity and Liabilities

2011
Group

2010
Group

2009
Group

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2,328,752 2,196,156 1,833,113 1,792,635 1,552,000 1,401,620 1,201,182 1,153,900 1,055,396

957,512

188,204
(7,560)

110,209
(14,657)

(123,470)
(13,798)

41,364
(24,995)

132,458
(10,948)

91,215
(15,162)

(11,654)
(13,674)

54,312
(12,161)

35,364
(15,868)

7,892
(15,368)

180,644
(51,005)
129,639

95,552
(65,189)
30,363

(137,268)
(9,062)
(146,330)

16,369
(28,583)
(12,215)

121,510
(45,428)
76,082

76,054
(29,359)
46,695

(25,328)
(918)
(26,245)

42,151
(13,740)
28,411

19,496
(5,150)
14,346

(7,476)
1,002
(6,474)

189,236
33,959
291,549
287,210
16,858
818,812

173,635
18,636
298,548
276,844
10,797
778,460

176,005
12,816
191,381
236,716
55,658
672,576

180,163
15,382
189,757
263,698
41,344
690,343

170,853
14,466
156,796
215,968
10,058
568,141

114,920
155,582
193,846
48,736
513,084

131,086
124,041
151,055
15,936
422,118

151,575
90,381
181,529
98,128
521,614

164,361
120
85,710
155,675
31,379
437,245

170,532
231
88,904
133,306
25,229
418,202

274,815
94,654
82,958
452,427
57,841
86,820

274,815
94,654
(46,506)
322,963
53,428
198,355

274,815
92,803
(78,051)
289,567
51,897
108,283

274,815
92,803
86,395
454,013
50,746
26,921

99,815
92,803
123,072
315,690
49,294
35,013

99,815
32,417
59,490
191,723
46,326
128,727

99,815
35,223
12,795
147,833
73,424
90,479

99,815
35,223
49,041
184,079
98,131
136,390

99,815
35,223
20,750
155,787
50,686
161,780

99,815
35,223
6,404
141,442
48,596
176,581

216,220

178,384

222,829

158,663

150,189

124,859

110,382

103,015

68,991

51,584

5,504
818,812

25,330
778,460

672,576

690,343

17,955
568,141

21,449
513,084

422,118

521,614

437,245

418,202

The above indicates the simplified Income Statement and the Balance Sheet of the Company for the year 2003 to 2008 and of the Group for the year 2009
to 2012.
The Balance Sheet is catergorised in to its key Assets and Liabilities.
All figures given in Rs.000’s unless otherwise stated.
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Key Ratios and Information
2012
Group

2011
Group

2010
Group

2009
Group

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

(A) Profitability & Return to Shareholders
Net Profit ratio (%)
Earnings/(Loss) per Share (Rs.)
Return on Equity (%)
Return on capital employed (%)
Dividend per Share (Rs.)
Debt equity ratio (%)
Shareholders equity ratio (%)

5.57
15.25
33.44
35.49
19.19
55.25

1.38
3.57
9.91
23.98
61.42
41.49

(7.98)
(17.22)
(39.36)
(28.10)
2.50
37.39
43.05

(0.68)
(1.44)
(3.17)
9.95
3.50
5.93
65.77

4.90
8.95
29.99
39.47
2.50
11.09
55.57

3.33
5.49
27.50
32.65
69.07
37.37

(2.18)
(3.09)
(15.81)
(4.17)
2.00
79.53
35.02

2.46
3.34
16.72
17.02
101.52
35.29

1.36
1.69
9.65
11.03
103.85
35.63

(0.68)
(0.76)
(4.52)
2.61
124.84
33.82

(B) Liquidity
Current ratio (Times)
Quick ratio (Times)
Interest cover (Times)

1.93
0.99
24.89

1.46
0.72
7.52

1.46
0.88
(8.95)

2.67
1.64
1.65

1.88
1.11
12.10

1.45
0.88
6.02

1.45
0.83
(0.85)

1.55
1.17
4.47

1.18
0.81
2.23

1.08
0.69
0.51

6.56
-

41.99
-

(4.01)
-

(23.22)
4.14

3.86
3.56

5.60
-

(6.80)
2.71

7.02
-

6.23
-

(11.38)
-

53.23

38.00

34.07

53.41

37.14

22.56

17.39

21.66

18.33

16.64

100.00

150.00

69.00

50.50

56.00

49.75

34.00

38.00

17.00

14.00

453
5,141
2,108

440
4,991
1,683

456
4,020
1,108

455
3,940
1,376

434
3,576
1,566

435
3,222
1,231

439
2,736
1,014

452
2,553
987

490
2,154
772

483
1,982
672

(C) Investors Ratios
Price earnings ratio (No. of Times)
Dividend cover (No. of Times)
Net assets per share as at year end (Rs.)
(D) Share Valuation
Market value per share as at year end (Rs.)
(E) Other Information
Number of employees
Turnover per employee (Rs. ‘000)
Value added per employee (Rs. ‘000)

The Above ratio are based on the Income Statement and the Balance Sheet of the Company from year 2003 to 2008 and of the Group for the year 2009 to
2012.

Real Estate Portfolio
			
Address
Building in Sq. Feet
			
Freehold Building
No.16, Minuwangoda Road
44,869
Leasehold Building
Ekala Ja-ela
7,700
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Extent of Land in Acres
3.0
3.3

Glossary of Financial Terminology
Accrual Basis

Net Assets

Recording Revenues and Expenses in the period in which they
are earned or incurred regardless of whether cash is received or
disbursed in that period.

Total assets minus Current Liabilities minus Long Term Liabilities
minus Minority Interest.

Net Asset per Share
Capital Employed

Net Assets, over number of Ordinary Shares in issue.

Shareholders’ Funds plus Debt

Net Debt
Contingent Liabilities

Net Debt minus Cash plus Short Term Deposits

A condition or situation existing at the Balance Sheet date due
to past events, where the financial effect is not recognised
because:

Net Turnover per Employee

1.

The obligation is crystalised by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more future events or,

Price Earnings Ratio

A probable outflow of economic resources is not expected
or,

Quick Ratio

2.

3.

Net Turnover over average number of employees.

Market Price per Share over Earnings per Share.

Cash plus Short term Investments plus Receivables over Current
Liabilities.

It is unable to be measured with sufficient reliability.

Return on Assets
Current Ratio

Profit After Tax over Average Total Assets.

Current Assets over Current Liabilities

Return on Capital Employed
Debt / Equity Ratio
Debt as a percentage of Shareholders Funds

Earning Before Interest and Tax as percentage of average
Shareholders’ Funds + Total Debt.

Dividend Cover

Return on Equity

Earnings per Share over Dividends per Share.

Consolidated Profit after Tax as a Percentage of Average
Shareholders’ Funds.

Dividends Payout Ratio
Total Dividend as a percentage of Company Profits.

Shareholder Equity Ratio
Total Shareholder Equity as a percentage of Total Assets.

Earnings per Share (EPS)
Profit After tax attributable to ordinary shareholding over
numbers of Ordinary Shares in issue.

Shareholders’ Funds

Earnings yield

Total Debt

Earnings per Share as a percentage of Market price per Share
end of the period.

Long Term Loans plus short Term Loans and Overdrafts.

Stated Capital, Capital Reserves and Revenue Reserves.

Total Value Added
Effective Rate of Taxation
Income Tax, including deffered tax over Profit before Tax.

The difference between revenue (including other income) and
expenses, cost of materials and services purchased from
external sources.

Interest cover
Profit before Interest and Tax over Finance Expenses.

Total Assets

Market Capitalisation

Fixed Assets plus Investments plus Non Current Assets plus
Current Assets.

Number of Shares in issue at the end of period multiplied by the
Market price at end of period.
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Notice of Meeting
Notice is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting of Keells Food Products PLC will be held at the Human Resources
Auditorium, of John Keells Holdings PLC, No.130, Glennie Street, Colombo 2, on Tuesday, 26th June 2012 at 11.00 a.m. The
business to be brought before the meeting will be:
					
•
To read the Notice convening the meeting.
•

To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Directors and the Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended 31st March
2012 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
			
•
To re-elect as Director, Mr. Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne who retires by rotation in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association.
		
•
To re-elect as Director, Mr. Ranil Pieris who retires by rotation in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of Association.
			
•
To authorise the Directors to determine and make donations.
•

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst and Young, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the year 2012/13 and to authorise
the Directors to determine their remuneration.
					
•
To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.					
						
By Order of the Board					
Keells Food Products PLC

				
Keells Consultants (Private) Limited 			
Secretaries
					
Colombo					
1 June 2012

Note
•
•
•
•

83

A shareholder unable to attend is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her place.
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.
A shareholder wishing to vote by proxy at the meeting may use the proxy form enclosed.
To be valid, the completed proxy form must be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the
meeting.
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Form of Proxy
I/We ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... of
...................................................................................................................................................................................................... being a
member/s of Keells Food Products PLC., hereby appoint:
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................. of
....................................................................................................................................................................................... or failing him/her
Mr.Susantha Chaminda Ratnayake of Colombo
Mr.Ajit Damon Gunewardene of Colombo
Mr.James Ronnie Felitus Peiris of Colombo
Mr.Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne of Colombo
Mr.Shiran Harsha Amarasekera of Colombo
Mr.Athulugamage Damian Eardley Ignatius Perera of Colombo
Mr.Ranil Pieris of Colombo
Mr.Mahinda Preethiraj Jayawardena of Colombo

or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 11.00 a.m. on
the 26th of June 2012 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.
FOR
To re-elect as Director, Mr. J . R. Gunaratne, who retires in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.
To re-elect as Director, Mr. R. Pieris, who retires in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.
To authorise the Directors to determine and make donations.

To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signed on this ...................................... day of ................................... Two Thousand and Twelve

..................................................
Signature/s of shareholder/s

INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF FORM OF PROXY ARE SET OUT ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.
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AGAINST

Form of Proxy Contd.

INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF PROXY

88

1.

Kindly complete the Form of Proxy by filling in legibly
your full name and address and that of the Proxy
holder. Please sign in the space provided and fill in
the date of signature.

2.

The instrument appointing a Proxy shall, in the case
of an individual, be signed by the appointer or by his
Attorney and in the case of a Corporation must be
executed under the Common Seal or in such other
manner prescribed by its Articles of Association or
other Constitutional documents.

3.

If the Proxy Form is signed by an Attorney the
relevant Power of Attorney or a notarially certified
copy thereof, should also accompany the completed
Form of Proxy if it has not already been registered
with the Company.

4.

To be valid, the completed Form of Proxy should be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
at 130, Glennie Street, Colombo 2 not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for the holding of
the meeting.
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Name of Company

Auditors

Keells Food Products PLC			
PQ 3				

Ernst & Young , Chartered Accountants
201, De Saram Place
Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.

Legal Form

Bankers

Public Limited Liability Company
Established in 1982			

Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Deutsche Bank AG
Bank of Ceylon
Nation Trust Bank PLC
DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC

Company Registration Number

Registered Office of the Company
N0.130, Glennie Street, Colombo 2
Sri Lanka.
Tel: +94 11 2421101			

Ekala Factory
No.16, Minuwangoda Road Ekala, Ja-Ela.
Tel: +94 11 2236317
Fax: +94 11 2236359
E-Mail: foods@keells.com
Web: www.keells.com

Board of Directors
Mr. S.C. Ratnayake (Chairman)
Mr. A.D. Gunewardene
Mr. J.R. F. Peiris
Mr. J.R. Gunaratne
Mr. S.H. Amarasekera
Mr. R.Pieris
Mr. A.D.E.I. Perera
Mr. M.P. Jayawardena

Audit Committee
Mr. M.P. Jayawardena (Chairman)
Mr. R. Pieris
Mr. S.H. Amarasekera
Mr. A.D.E.I. Perera

Secretaries & Registrars
Keells Consultants (Pvt) Ltd
No.130, Glennie Street, Colombo 02
Sri Lanka.

Stock Exchange Listing
The Ordinary Shares of the Company are listed with the
Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka.

Subsidiary
John Keells Foods India Private Limited
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Celebrating Life

